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       1                         P R O C E E D I N G S

       2                 (Transcript follows in sequence from

       3       Volume 3.)

       4                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  We'll call our

       5       meeting to order for this morning, and we will pick up

       6       with, I guess, preliminary matters before we go back to

       7       our point in our agenda where we left.

       8                 MR. YOUNG:  Yes, ma'am.  We'll pick up with

       9       the preliminary matters as relates to Commissioner

      10       Skop's request.  And I think Ms. Helton had, our General

      11       Counsel, Mr. Kiser, is here to respond to those

      12       requests, Commissioner.

      13                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Yes.

      14                 MR. KISER:  Chairman, we did get a phone call

      15       this morning, and the, Florida Power & Light will have

      16       someone here to respond to the questions that were

      17       raised at the end of the meeting regarding making

      18       Mr. Olivera available for answering some questions.  So

      19       if they have someone, I would recommend we hear from

      20       them first off.

      21                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  Why don't we do

      22       that now.  I'm going to shift everybody around I guess.

      23       Well, we're in place.  Okay.  Very good.

      24                 MR. ANDERSON:  Yes.  I believe we're ready to

      25       proceed.
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       1                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  If you would.

       2                 MR. ANDERSON:  FPL has been asked to provide

       3       its position with respect to a request by Commissioner

       4       Skop late yesterday in the middle of Progress's case to

       5       have our Chief Executive Officer appear at this hearing.

       6       The purpose of this appearance is apparently to answer

       7       the Commissioner's questions on matters that, to the

       8       limited extent they were described by Commissioner Skop

       9       yesterday afternoon, appear nowhere on the issues list

      10       in the Prehearing Order.

      11                 As you are all well aware, the issues in the

      12       Prehearing Order govern the disposition of this case.

      13       This is a highly irregular request, it has no legal

      14       basis, and would provide a very poor precedent for the

      15       Commission.

      16                 Permit me to remind the Commission that a week

      17       ago FPL filed with the Commission a stipulation to defer

      18       consideration of this year's issues into the

      19       2011 proceeding.  That stipulation is fully consistent

      20       with Commission practice and properly addresses the

      21       issues stated in the Prehearing Order.  It is a

      22       stipulation which has been filed on behalf of FPL and

      23       the Office of Public Counsel and the Florida Industrial

      24       Power Users Group.  In addition, the only other

      25       Intervenor, the Southern Alliance for Clean Energy, has
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       1       no objection to the stipulation.

       2                 So if that stipulation is approved, to be

       3       clear, there is no reason for any questions of any

       4       witnesses as a legal matter.  But we will come to that

       5       stipulation in due course, as I understand, after the

       6       conclusion of Progress's case.

       7                 Now let me address our concerns with the

       8       request by Commissioner Skop to have our Chief Executive

       9       Officer appear.

      10                 The Administrative Procedure Act and the

      11       Commission's rules provide for notice to parties as to

      12       the issues in each case.  The Commission has a

      13       long-standing procedure for filing prefiled testimony

      14       identifying the issues and witnesses that provides a

      15       clear roadmap for adjudication of issues before the

      16       Commission.  This process implements the requirements of

      17       the Administrative Procedure Act to provide notice to

      18       parties prior to adjudicatory hearings, which promotes

      19       fundamental fairness to all parties.

      20                 The purpose of hearings before the Commission

      21       is to develop a record and provide information to the

      22       Commissioners to inform decision-making.  This

      23       Commission has always focused on what is being said and

      24       not who is saying it.

      25                 Now without the benefit of a specifically
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       1       identified issue, FPL assumes for purposes of this

       2       discussion that the issue raised by Commissioner Skop

       3       deals with the Concentric report we've talked about.

       4       The simple fact is that the Concentric report was

       5       provided to audit staff, the Commission and the parties

       6       two months ago.  At all times Commissioner Skop has had

       7       full and unfettered access to this information.

       8                 For the past two months, no party, including

       9       Commissioner Skop, has raised any issues regarding the

      10       Concentric report.  Moreover, no issue was raised by any

      11       party, the staff, Commissioner Skop, prior to or during

      12       the Prehearing Conference regarding the report, as

      13       required by Commissioner Skop's own Order Establishing

      14       Procedure.  Consequently, it should be no surprise that

      15       there's no mention of the Concentric report in the

      16       August 20, 2010, Prehearing Order issued by Commissioner

      17       Skop.

      18                 FPL has not been provided notice as to any

      19       issue or even the subject of questioning of Mr. Olivera,

      20       as required under the law and fundamental principles of

      21       due process and fairness.  The complete lack of notice

      22       is self-evident.

      23                 We'd also point out there is a formal legal

      24       process for the issuance of subpoenas by law.  The

      25       subpoena would have to be properly served on the
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       1       witness, FPL would have the right to object and litigate

       2       at a minimum the relevancy and scope of the subpoena at

       3       the Commission and in the appellate courts.  If this

       4       route is followed, it would be weeks, if not months,

       5       even beyond the balance of the year, before a subpoena

       6       could be enforced.  Based on these considerations, it is

       7       unlikely that an enforceable subpoena could be issued to

       8       compel the appearance of a witness during this week's

       9       proceedings.

      10                 One could also easily conclude by some of the

      11       comments that FPL has been prejudged on the issues

      12       without the benefit of testimony or evidence.  I think

      13       everyone would agree that the appearance of prejudgment

      14       is not good for this Commission or for the reputation of

      15       the State of Florida.

      16                 Without minimizing the concerns that I've

      17       expressed, I wish to also emphasize that FPL places

      18       great value in having a cooperative and constructive

      19       approach to these important matters before this

      20       Commission.  Therefore, we believe there is no need for

      21       the Commission to issue a subpoena to compel the

      22       appearance of FPL's Chief Executive Officer.

      23                 As acknowledged just a few days ago, Friday,

      24       by Commissioner Skop, FPL has gone, quote, over and

      25       above in good faith, close quote, to add, and I quote,
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       1       transparency, close quote, with respect to FPL's

       2       documents for which it had a legitimate claim of

       3       confidentiality.

       4                 Given the extraordinary nature of this

       5       request, we believe it appropriate for the full

       6       Commission to provide direction.  If it is the will of

       7       the full Commission, then, in the spirit of cooperation

       8       and good faith, FPL will have Mr. Olivera appear before

       9       the Commission to answer questions germane to this

      10       proceeding.

      11                 To facilitate that appearance, if it's the

      12       will of the full Commission, FPL requests a list as to

      13       the specific subjects on which questions will be asked

      14       so that Mr. Olivera can adequately prepare.  FPL is

      15       making this offer as a good faith gesture in a

      16       cooperative spirit and reserves all of its legal

      17       arguments, rights and remedies.

      18                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  If you'd like to, you're

      19       recognized.

      20                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you, Madam Chairman.

      21       And thank you, Mr. Anderson, for your thoughts that you

      22       shared with the Commission this morning.

      23                 Just some brief comments.  The assumptions

      24       that you made are inaccurate.  With respect to

      25       questioning the impartiality of the Prehearing Officer
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       1       and me as Commissioner, as a member of the Florida Bar,

       2       I take extreme exception to your comments.

       3                 The question that I presented yesterday was a

       4       simple request propounded upon your company.  Your

       5       company will either honor the request in good faith or

       6       they won't.  So, again, I think that at the end of the

       7       day the questions I have are constructive, they're not

       8       meant to be inflammatory.  Due process is a two-way

       9       street.  And if we want to debate the fine points of due

      10       process, I certainly have some concerns that I will get

      11       into.

      12                 Again, at the end of the day, leadership is

      13       set by example, and accountability starts at the top of

      14       any organization.  You're fully aware of the documents

      15       that were only disclosed as of Friday, and there are

      16       other documents that are at issue.  Each of my questions

      17       pertain to live issues related to this proceeding and

      18       the documentation of the data that's been provided in

      19       the, in this proceeding.

      20                 So, again, I'm going to leave it as a request.

      21       But, again, certainly, you know, from a corporate

      22       perspective, it would have been simple enough to just

      23       merely honor the request.  But either the company will

      24       choose to honor it or they won't.  And if I believe I

      25       heard Mr. Anderson correctly, notwithstanding making a
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       1       case to get into the stipulations in this matter, which

       2       were filed, if my memory serves me correctly, on the

       3       18th or 17th of this month, and I need to check that

       4       date, you know, certainly we can get into that.

       5                 But what I heard from the company is now

       6       they've asked the full Commission to render a decision

       7       as to the appropriateness of my questions.  And not only

       8       that, prior to producing or making Mr. Olivera

       9       available, it's conditioned or predicated upon a

      10       specific list of questions.  Again, different companies

      11       approach, you know, their interaction with the

      12       Commission in different ways.

      13                 Knowing some of the issues in this docket,

      14       again, if I were similarly situated, I would probably

      15       proactively make myself available to this Commission to

      16       answer questions.  So I respect FPL's legal position.

      17       I'm prepared to, you know, do what the will of the

      18       Commission is on this matter.  But I think it's, it was

      19       a very simple, reasonable request that apparently got

      20       blown out of proportion unnecessarily through additional

      21       questioning.

      22                 Again, I'm an attorney, I'm a Commissioner, a

      23       member of the Bar.  I know, you know, the appropriate

      24       questions to ask, and those questions would have been

      25       asked with the respect afforded to a person in that
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       1       position.  But at the end of the day, they're fair

       2       questions.  And that's basically all I have to say,

       3       Madam Chair.  Thank you.

       4                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Where does that leave

       5       us?

       6                 MR. KISER:  Madam Chairman, I take the

       7       response from the company is that if the will of the

       8       Commission is to have him appear, under the conditions

       9       that were stated, they would.  Without that, then they

      10       would choose not to present him.  So I think it's a

      11       question for the Commission to --

      12                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Well, let me ask this

      13       question then of Commissioner Skop.  Knowing that the

      14       company wants the full Commission to vote on that, does

      15       that make a difference to you?  Do you want to just

      16       forget it?  Do you want to pursue it?  Let's find out

      17       what you would like to do.

      18                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Again, I have concerns.  I

      19       usually, you know, try and show deference to my

      20       colleagues.  Obviously, procedurally they've attempted

      21       to, you know, basically shift the scales and put the

      22       burden on the full Commission vote as to whether they

      23       will choose to make him available and which conditions

      24       they will make him available under.  And really I didn't

      25       really feel that this would get down to a negotiation.
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       1       It was a simple request that should have been honored.

       2       You know, I think that, you know, it comes down to, you

       3       know, respect for the regulatory process or lack

       4       thereof.

       5                 So I understand the due process concerns that

       6       are raised, but the issues are highly relevant and

       7       highly germane to the issues here.  If it is the will of

       8       the Commission -- and, again, I apologize to Progress,

       9       because, again, under the Order Establishing Procedure,

      10       Progress's case in chief was to go first.

      11                 I brought this up, correcting what

      12       Mr. Anderson represented to the Commission, I brought

      13       this up at the end of the day, not in the middle of

      14       PEF's case, but as a closing matter for planning

      15       purposes.  So that's another exception I take.

      16                 But, you know, if it's the will of the

      17       Commission, we can take up the stipulation, I can say my

      18       piece, the vote will be what it will be, but, or we can

      19       address the issue with respect to my request to make

      20       Mr. Olivera, you know, ask and see whether he wants to

      21       appear.  But apparently that seems to be bogging down

      22       into a protracted reluctance on FPL's part to honor what

      23       typically would be a simple request.  And I'm reasonably

      24       certain if I made the same request upon Progress or

      25       another regulated IOU, I wouldn't have this resistance
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       1       under the circumstances.

       2                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  I'm still not sure where

       3       that leaves us.

       4                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Why don't, why don't we

       5       take up the, if it's the will of the Commission, why

       6       don't we take up -- because Mr. Anderson, you know, when

       7       he spoke, it was supposed to be about my request, but he

       8       managed to make a big hoo-ha about this stipulation.  So

       9       if we need to have that discussion, we can have it.  And

      10       if the Commission decides to approve the FPL

      11       stipulations, then I guess it denies me the ability to

      12       even ask Mr. Olivera those questions.  So that's

      13       probably the better predicate.  And if -- at the Chair's

      14       discretion, I'll look to the Chair to figure out what we

      15       want to do with respect to proposed stipulations.

      16       Because I see this going nowhere and I don't, I don't

      17       want to waste Progress's time.

      18                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Well, if it's up to me,

      19       and everybody else chime in here, what I'd rather do is

      20       just continue with Progress's case right now and just

      21       move forward.

      22                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Very well.

      23       And I reserve my rights.  Again, I've made a request.  I

      24       guess it's incumbent upon FPL as to whether they choose

      25       to honor it or not.  I'll let them make that decision.
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       1                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  And then we'll --

       2       Commissioner Graham.

       3                 COMMISSIONER GRAHAM:  I move that we lay the

       4       stipulation on the table and retake up Progress where we

       5       left off, and then we can come back and address the

       6       stipulation when we're done with Progress.

       7                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Second.

       8                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  All those in favor?

       9                 (Unanimous affirmative vote.)

      10                 Okay.  And I believe that at that time we have

      11       a right of, each Commissioner has a right to hear or ask

      12       questions that they want to ask, and we'll take it from

      13       there.  So let's move on.  Thank you.  Back to our

      14       agenda, where we were.

      15                 Mr. Rehwinkel?

      16                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Yes.  Madam Chairman, after we

      17       spent the day going through the testimony and the

      18       significant amount of documents, I spent some time last

      19       night reviewing the questions that I have for the, for

      20       the rest of the case, and I'm fully aware that my

      21       questions are probably the real time contributor to us

      22       being here.

      23                 About two weeks ago I took three depositions,

      24       one of Mr. Franke, one of Mr. Lyash, and one of

      25       Mr. Elnitsky, and between myself and the other parties,

                              FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                       504

       1       we spent most of the day with each witness.  And so

       2       there are significant depositions that, testimony that

       3       has been provided.

       4                 I have approached the parties and the, and the

       5       staff about maybe taking a few minutes to sit down and

       6       try to work out some protocols for streamlining the rest

       7       of the hearing.  And I think everyone is kind of in

       8       agreement that if we do so, we could save, we could save

       9       a lot of testimony time here.

      10                 We're not talking about completely stipulating

      11       witnesses in, but narrowing the testimony and the

      12       cross-examination and the answers.  And so we would, I

      13       think with the consent of everyone, we would ask if we

      14       could have maybe 30 minutes to sit down and try to work

      15       that out.  To save 30 minutes today, right now would

      16       potentially save a lot of time the rest of the day.

      17                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  I don't see any, any

      18       reason why not to.  Why don't we, why don't we do that.

      19       Now make sure, because we all get paid a lot of money to

      20       sit here and listen, so we'll stay.  If you need to ask,

      21       there should be no rush.  But if you feel like you can,

      22       you can do that and accommodate, you know, the questions

      23       that you have and get it out where you need to get it

      24       to, to our ears too, then why don't we just, why don't

      25       we just do that, take 30 minutes.  And if you need a few
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       1       more, just --

       2                 MR. REHWINKEL:  And let me assure you, I felt

       3       no pressure by anyone, the Commission or the other

       4       parties, to limit what I'm doing.

       5                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Sure.

       6                 MR. REHWINKEL:  I just know the nature of

       7       these issues are highly technical.  The documentation

       8       we're going through is highly technical.  There reaches

       9       a point of diminishing returns about what can be

      10       explicated in live testimony with technical documents

      11       like this.

      12                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Sure.

      13                 MR. REHWINKEL:  So being aware of that, we're

      14       going to try to kind of narrow things down.

      15                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Certainly.  And let me

      16       just reassure you that I'm just making that comment so

      17       you knew that none of us were telling you you had to

      18       hurry up.

      19                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Thank you.

      20                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  All right.  Let's

      21       do that.  Let's take at least 30 minutes.  We'll be

      22       back.  Thank you.

      23                 (Recess taken.)

      24                 Okay.  Let's start her back up.  Commissioner

      25       Skop, you're recognized.
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       1                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you, Madam Chair.

       2       And I apologize for the interruption, but I do believe

       3       it's important to correct a prior statement that was

       4       made to this Commission.

       5                 Mr. Anderson, in his lengthy discussion

       6       previously, asserted something, and I would ask the

       7       court reporter if she might be so kind to read back four

       8       lines that were represented to the Commission by

       9       Mr. Anderson.  And that would begin on page 3, lines 24

      10       and 25, continuing on to page 4, lines 1 and 2, please.

      11                 (Foregoing excerpt read by court reporter.)

      12                 Thank you.  And if I may, Madam Chair, to

      13       properly rebut that statement that was made to the

      14       Commission, I would look to Ms. Harvey from Commission

      15       audit staff to speak to when audit staff was provided

      16       with the Concentric report and some of the instances

      17       surrounding that, as well as my access to that report at

      18       that time.

      19                 MS. HARVEY:  Commissioners, audit staff

      20       requested the Concentric report on May 8th, 2010, and

      21       the staff received a copy of the Concentric report on

      22       June 23rd, 2010.

      23                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  And, Ms. Harvey, with

      24       respect to Commission audit staff receiving such report,

      25       I would not have had access to that report at that time;
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       1       is that correct?

       2                 MS. HARVEY:  That's correct.

       3                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  And I would not

       4       have had access to it as a Commissioner until it was

       5       properly filed in the docket; is that correct?

       6                 MS. HARVEY:  Correct.

       7                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  And subject to

       8       check, and, Ms. Harvey, if you're not comfortable with

       9       this, I'll ask Ms. Bennett from our legal department,

      10       but subject to check, the Concentric report was

      11       requested by Commission staff in staff's fourth request

      12       for production of documents, specifically Document

      13       Number 25; is that correct?

      14                 MS. HARVEY:  I was not involved in that

      15       request.

      16                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Thank you,

      17       Ms. Harvey.

      18                 Ms. Bennett?

      19                 MS. BENNETT:  It was, and it was provided on

      20       August 17th.

      21                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  So I guess what we

      22       could reasonably conclude from this, notwithstanding the

      23       statements represented to the Commission by

      24       Mr. Anderson, was that I indeed did not have full and

      25       unfettered access to this report two months ago; is that
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       1       correct?

       2                 MS. BENNETT:  The Commissioners are not, don't

       3       have access to staff's audit work papers until that's

       4       made part of the docket file.

       5                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you, ma'am.

       6                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

       7                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Well, let's go one step

       8       further.  When was it made part of the docket, what

       9       date?

      10                 MS. BENNETT:  The, my recollection is that on

      11       the day before the prehearing, on August 17 -- 16th --

      12       it may have been August 15th, something like that, there

      13       was a copy of staff's audit work paper on the Concentric

      14       report filed in the docket file.  A few days later,

      15       August 16th, 17th, and, again, I would have to go back

      16       into CMS to give you the exact dates, but --

      17                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Well, can I ask staff a

      18       question?  Would someone like Mr. Anderson know that

      19       Commissioners don't have access to that?  Because that

      20       makes a big difference about what his statement meant.

      21       If he doesn't know, then that's a different story.  But

      22       if he should know, then that tells me something else.

      23                 MS. BENNETT:  I'm not certain what outside

      24       parties' understanding of our audit process is and who

      25       would have knowledge of Commission staff -- or
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       1       Commissioners' access to staff's work papers.  I don't

       2       know that.

       3                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  So then I guess without

       4       asking, it's just an assumption on Mr. Anderson's part

       5       that we would have that information.

       6                 MS. BENNETT:  Yes.

       7                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  Commissioner

       8       Skop, you're recognized.

       9                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you, Madam Chair.

      10       And I'll just make this brief.  Again, it's not at issue

      11       is what Mr. Anderson knew.  It's the breadth and

      12       cavalierness of the statements made as it pertains to

      13       what I knew, which I take again great exception to some

      14       of the comments that were made earlier this morning.

      15                 And, Ms. Bennett, just one follow-up to the

      16       question.  Not to belabor the point, but it's my

      17       understanding that the actual Concentric report itself

      18       was agreed to be declassified at the evidentiary hearing

      19       on the 20th; is that correct?

      20                 MS. BENNETT:  That's correct.

      21                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  So until, until the

      22       evidentiary hearing on the 20th, the majority of the

      23       staff audit report, the Concentric report and the

      24       underlying letter were all claimed to be confidential by

      25       FPL; is that correct?
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       1                 MS. BENNETT:  Yes.

       2                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  And that was the first

       3       time that they were disclosed publicly was August 20th;

       4       is that correct?

       5                 MS. BENNETT:  Yes.

       6                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you.

       7                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Commissioner Skop, while

       8       it may not have been important to you, and I understand

       9       the reasons why and I understand what is important to

      10       you, but it is important to me of whether he knew or

      11       not.  If someone knows that the Commissioners do not

      12       have that access, then that was an intentional whatever,

      13       and maybe they don't know because -- and that's the

      14       reason I asked.  It makes a big difference to me if

      15       someone knows ahead of time and then makes that

      16       statement while knowing that we don't have that

      17       information.  That sends a very, very loud message to

      18       me, and it may answer a lot of things that I've seen

      19       here and while I've been here.  I'm not sure that's the

      20       case though.  That's why I asked the question.  It is

      21       important, it is significant.  Okay.

      22                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you, Madam Chair.

      23                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Commissioner Skop, did

      24       you --

      25                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you, Madam Chair.
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       1                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  Let's, let's put

       2       ourselves in the proper posture.  Now that we've, we've

       3       gotten this taken care of, I guess, to whatever degree

       4       we are and you have corrected that assumption, I guess

       5       we are now back on our Progress.

       6                 Mr. Rehwinkel.

       7                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Thank you, Madam Chairman and

       8       Commissioners.  I appreciate your willingness to let us

       9       talk because I think it paid off.  I will defer to

      10       Ms. Bennett to describe the agreement that the parties

      11       have come to to streamline the remaining portions of the

      12       Progress segment of the hearing.

      13                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  And I thank all

      14       parties for being able to do so.

      15                 Ms. Bennett?

      16                 MS. BENNETT:  Yes.  We met, and it was

      17       actually at the suggestion of OPC to streamline.  The

      18       parties have agreed, and if it's at your pleasure,

      19       Commissioners, that we finish with Jon Franke, who's on

      20       the stand now, his direct only.  Then Sue Hardison,

      21       who's also of Progress Energy, will come and provide

      22       direct testimony.  I understand that there's limited

      23       cross remaining for Ms. Hardison.

      24                 Mr. Karp is a Progress witness and he's

      25       previously been excused, so all you would need to do is
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       1       admit his testimony and exhibits into the record.

       2                 Mr. Elnitsky and Mr. Lyash, Lyash appear next

       3       as direct witnesses, but both Progress and the parties

       4       have agreed that, instead of putting them on as direct,

       5       that they will reserve them until rebuttal and put the

       6       direct and rebuttal on together.

       7                 So the next witness would be Dr. Mark Cooper

       8       from SACE.  And, again, he's been excused, so you would

       9       admit his direct testimony and exhibits into the record.

      10       Mr. Gunderson is also a SACE witness.  And, again, he's

      11       been excused, so you would just admit testimony and

      12       exhibits.

      13                 Then Dr. William Jacobs, who is OPC's witness,

      14       and I understand that there's limited cross, Progress I

      15       think has indicated maybe 15 minutes.  Joint testimony

      16       of staff witnesses Coston and Carpenter will be next.

      17       Again, I think the parties have agreed that there's

      18       limited cross, but there is cross-examination of those

      19       witnesses.

      20                 Then we would move into the PEF rebuttal, with

      21       Mr. Franke coming up again for rebuttal, then John

      22       Elnitsky for direct and rebuttal together, and finally

      23       Jeff Lyash with direct and rebuttal together.

      24                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Madam Chairman, I would just

      25       add that the Public Counsel's cross-examination of
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       1       Mr. Franke will cease upon the admission of agreed-to

       2       exhibits and his deposition and we would go through

       3       that.  But I would have no further questions for Mr.

       4       Franke, and I think that there would be limited cross

       5       from the other parties.

       6                 I am not certain whether the cross-examination

       7       was intended to occur now or when he came back on

       8       rebuttal, but my assumption was it would be now.

       9                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Now.  Okay.  Then why

      10       don't we just move forward then.  Thank you.

      11                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Madam Chairman, I have passed

      12       out a set of documents that I would just like to

      13       identify for the record and get an exhibit number.  The

      14       company is -- while the hearing progresses to

      15       conclusion, they will be reviewing the agreed-upon

      16       exhibits for confidentiality and will submit to the

      17       court reporter -- the, the official record version will

      18       be properly highlighted for confidentiality.  But we

      19       thought what we'd do is identify for the record the

      20       documents, give them a number, and then the

      21       administrative work of confidentiality would be taken

      22       care of as we go today.

      23                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  Then I believe

      24       we're on 198.  Am I correct?  Okay.  198.

      25                 MR. YOUNG:  Yes, ma'am.
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       1                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  And then we can

       2       go ahead and do that.  And did you give it a name?  I'm

       3       sorry.

       4                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Yeah.  So 198 would be, a

       5       short title would be PRG Minutes.

       6                 (Exhibit 198 marked for identification.)

       7                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.

       8                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Okay.  The next document would

       9       be, I guess, 199, and this would be 2009 CR3 Audit.

      10       This is an excerpt from some audit and audit work

      11       papers.

      12                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Mr. Rehwinkel, are they

      13       all to be reviewed for confidentiality?

      14                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Yes.

      15                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.

      16                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Yes, Commissioner.

      17                 (Exhibit 199 marked for identification.)

      18                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.

      19                 MR. REHWINKEL:  The next, 200 would be CR3 EPU

      20       IPP.

      21                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Eight, was that?  Did

      22       you say IP8?

      23                 MR. REHWINKEL:  IPP.

      24                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  IPP.  I'm sorry.  Okay.

      25       Thank you.
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       1                 (Exhibit 200 marked for identification.)

       2                 MR. REHWINKEL:  And the next one, 201, would

       3       be March 2009 Uprate Presentation.

       4                 (Exhibit 201 marked for identification.)

       5                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.

       6                 MR. REHWINKEL:  And for 202, July 2009 Uprate

       7       Presentation.

       8                 (Exhibit 202 marked for identification.)

       9                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.

      10                 MR. REHWINKEL:  And for 203, October 2009

      11       Uprate Presentation.

      12                 (Exhibit 203 marked for identification.)

      13                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.

      14                 MR. REHWINKEL:  204, response to DR3.

      15                 (Exhibit 204 marked for identification.)

      16                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.

      17                 MR. REHWINKEL:  And 205, deposition Exhibit 2.

      18                 (Exhibit 205 marked for identification.)

      19                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.

      20                 MR. REHWINKEL:  And, Madam Chairman, those

      21       are, that is the extent of the exhibits that we have

      22       agreed to with the parties on Mr. Franke.  I guess we

      23       would need a deposition exhibit for Mr. Franke's July 29

      24       deposition.  That would be 206.  So Franke deposition.

      25                 (Exhibit 206 marked for identification.)
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       1                 Madam Chairman, this document was taken

       2       pursuant to notice as a confidential deposition.  The

       3       company has provided confidential designations.  Because

       4       of the, the timing between when the, the document was,

       5       the court reporter provided the document and their

       6       opportunity to do the confidentiality designation, that

       7       has just recently happened.  My understanding is they

       8       will make redacted copies available shortly today and

       9       confidentially designated copies available if needed.

      10                 So what we have agreed upon is the full

      11       confidential designation, confidentially designated

      12       deposition will be what is moved into the record, but

      13       they will provide that with the appropriate yellow

      14       highlighting and justifications.

      15                 Am I correct with that, Mr. Walls?

      16                 MR. WALLS:  Yes, you are.

      17                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Okay.  So with that, with

      18       these documents, with these exhibits identified, Public

      19       Counsel's cross-examination of Mr. Franke is over.

      20                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Thank you.  That was,

      21       I'm sorry, Mr. Rehwinkel, that was 198 to, let me make

      22       sure I got it right, 206.  Okay.

      23                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you, Madam Chair.

      24                 Just a point of clarification.  Mr. Rehwinkel,

      25       exhibit, what's been marked for Exhibit Number 206 is
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       1       the actual deposition; is that correct?

       2                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Yes.

       3                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  Thank you.

       4                 MR. DAVIS:  Also for point of clarification,

       5       did the deposition have any exhibits to it?

       6                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Yes.  Mr. Franke's deposition

       7       had two late-filed deposition exhibits.  Actually --

       8       yes.  And two late-filed deposition exhibits.

       9                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Will we need numbers for

      10       those, or will that be included within the depo?

      11                 MR. REHWINKEL:  My -- those had already been

      12       provided by the company.  So I think it would be, if

      13       it's okay, they could be provided all as one.

      14                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Mr. Walls?

      15                 MR. WALLS:  May I have one moment?

      16                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Yes, you may.

      17                 MR. REHWINKEL:  If that was to be done, then

      18       we could -- then we wouldn't need 205, which was

      19       Exhibit 2.

      20                 MR. WALLS:  Ms. Huhta is probably the best

      21       person to speak to this, but my understanding is we

      22       filed our notice of confidential classification for the

      23       deposition of Mr. Franke with respect to the deposition

      24       itself, and then the late-filed exhibits came later and

      25       were served on the parties.  So the late-filed exhibits

                              FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                       518

       1       were not part of the request for confidential

       2       classification for the depo, the deposition.

       3                 MS. HUHTA:  Yes.  But they were part of a

       4       separate request, all which has already been filed.  And

       5       just a point of clarification, August 10th for the

       6       deposition of Jon Franke of 2010.  But the parties

       7       should have a copy received on Monday, but we will also

       8       provide additional copies.  We're having them made as we

       9       speak.

      10                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Very well.  Thank you.

      11                 MR. REHWINKEL:  The cover page, she put the

      12       wrong date on there.  I didn't realize that.  I was just

      13       reading it, but that's correct.

      14                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  So,

      15       Mr. Rehwinkel, in summation, exhibits that have been

      16       marked for identification are 198, 199, 200 and 201

      17       through 206, which is the depo, and those are fine.

      18                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Yes.

      19                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  With no modification

      20       required or deletion of 205.

      21                 MR. REHWINKEL:  I guess what I'm just pausing

      22       on is, is whether we should just make a 207, which would

      23       be late-filed deposition Exhibit Number 1.

      24                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Very well.

      25                 MR. WALLS:  I actually think that probably
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       1       would work better, Charles.

       2                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Okay.  Then 207 will be, and I

       3       have not provided that, but it's a single piece of

       4       paper.  It would be easy to provide to the parties.

       5                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Ms. Bradley is not here

       6       with us today.  Otherwise, she might be objecting to

       7       late-filed exhibits.  All right.  So we have what's been

       8       marked for identification, Exhibits 198 through 207, as

       9       I understand it.

      10                 MR. REHWINKEL:  That's correct.

      11                 (Exhibit 207 marked for identification.)

      12                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Very well.  And are you

      13       intending to move those in at this time?

      14                 MR. REHWINKEL:  I would move those at the, at

      15       the conclusion of Mr. Franke's testimony after the

      16       cross-examination.

      17                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Very well.  So

      18       that ends your cross-examination.  I guess we'll look to

      19       the next Intervenor.

      20                 Mr. Brew, you're recognized.

      21                 MR. BREW:  Thank you.  I have no questions for

      22       Mr. Franke.

      23                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Very well.

      24                 Ms. Kaufman?

      25                 MS. KAUFMAN:  I do have a few questions, Mr.
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       1       Chairman.

       2                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Please proceed.

       3                          CROSS EXAMINATION

       4       BY MS. KAUFMAN:

       5            Q.   Good morning, Mr. Franke.

       6            A.   Good morning.

       7            Q.   It's a little bit hard to see you.  I just

       8       have a couple of questions.  I just want to understand

       9       the relationship between the uprate project and the

      10       current Crystal River 3 outage.  And if I understood

      11       your testimony, it had been your plan to complete Phase

      12       3 of the uprate during the time that Crystal River came

      13       back for its refueling in 2011; is that correct?

      14            A.   That is correct.  Yes, ma'am.  The Phase 3 of

      15       the uprate included modifications that were being

      16       performed in conjunction with our 2011 refueling outage.

      17       That outage is now delayed due to the delay and restart

      18       from our current outage.

      19            Q.   You're anticipating where I'm going.  So

      20       because of the outage, the delayed, the prolonged outage

      21       at Crystal River 3, you're now still wanting to do it in

      22       conjunction with the refueling, but that's going to be,

      23       right now as you know it, in 2012?

      24            A.   Yes, ma'am.

      25            Q.   In the fall; is that what you had said?
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       1            A.   It is scheduled for fall of 2012.

       2            Q.   Okay.  If you have your April 30th testimony,

       3       if you would turn to page 8.

       4            A.   Yes, ma'am.

       5            Q.   Okay.  And if you look on lines 5 and 6, you

       6       say there, "As we complete the current outage, this

       7       decision will continue to be evaluated."  Correct?

       8            A.   Yes, ma'am.

       9            Q.   So fall 2012 is a ways away.  Is it possible

      10       that the refueling in 2012 will be pushed further out

      11       and thus the uprate will be pushed further out?

      12            A.   Anything is possible, but that is very

      13       unlikely.

      14            Q.   Okay.

      15            A.   Right now we understand what the repairs are

      16       to the current containment and we'll continue to work

      17       through the issues surrounding that containment, and we

      18       expect the plant to return during the fourth quarter.

      19       With a return of the plant in the fourth quarter, my

      20       next outage will be fall of 2012.

      21            Q.   But if additional issues arise that you're not

      22       aware of right now with the Crystal River 3 outage, then

      23       it's certainly possible, isn't it, that the uprate

      24       project would be pushed out to another refueling?

      25            A.   It would not be pushed out to another
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       1       refueling.  It will be performed during our next

       2       refueling.

       3            Q.   Right.  But my point being is if for some

       4       reason the Crystal 3 outage is longer and the plant

       5       doesn't come back as you currently expect, that's also

       6       going to push out the uprate project.

       7            A.   Yes, ma'am.

       8                 MS. KAUFMAN:  Thank you.  Thank you, Mr.

       9       Franke.

      10                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you, Ms. Kaufman.

      11                 Any further questions from SACE?

      12                 MR. DAVIS:  No.

      13                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  Any questions from

      14       the bench?  Okay.  I do, I do have some quick ones, and

      15       I'll try and make this very brief.

      16                 Good afternoon, or is it afternoon?  Good

      17       morning, Mr. Franke.

      18                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.

      19                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  In his opening

      20       statement, Mr. Glenn was very candid about Progress's

      21       concerns on the LAR, and you were very open about that

      22       yesterday during your testimony, your extensive

      23       testimony.

      24                 In your opinion, what are two of the biggest

      25       challenges currently faced in this CR3 EPU in terms of
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       1       getting it into service?

       2                 THE WITNESS:  Is your question with regard to

       3       the LAR specifically or to other issues?

       4                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Just as a whole, licensing

       5       as well as the remaining work scope that needs to be

       6       done.

       7                 THE WITNESS:  I, I have no concerns about the

       8       feasibility of if the project can be successful and

       9       eventual uprate of the project.

      10                 As I have discussed, we are working through

      11       with the NRC on the licensing for the digital

      12       instruments.  I think our digital instrument licensing

      13       is as about as simple as you can get, but we need to

      14       work through that process with the NRC to best

      15       understand that schedule and any potential impact on

      16       cost and when we'll actually achieve the increase in

      17       power, should that be at the conclusion of the next

      18       refueling outage or possibly a little bit after that

      19       based on the receipt of the licensing application.

      20                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Very well.

      21       And just so I can be sure what I'm approving, I just

      22       want to go quickly through some elements of your

      23       testimony; a nutshell summary, if you will.

      24                 But on page 7 of your prefiled testimony, I

      25       believe you testified that the remaining EPU work scope
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       1       during the next refueling outage will be approximately

       2       45 days, subject to any additional changes; is that

       3       correct?

       4                 THE WITNESS:  I believe you're talking about

       5       my, my April 30th testimony?

       6                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Yes, sir.  Your direct

       7       filed testimony.

       8                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.  That's the current

       9       estimate for that schedule, for that outage.

      10                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  And then continuing

      11       on to page 8, with respect to the current refueling

      12       outage and the delay resulting from the delamination of

      13       the concrete in the containment wall building.  On line

      14       12 on page 8 you talk about the steam generator

      15       replacement.  Those steam generators had to be replaced;

      16       is that correct?

      17                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.  That was a separate

      18       project, and those steam generators have been replaced.

      19                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  Very well.  And

      20       continuing on to page 9, you talk about the low pressure

      21       turbine installation deferral and how that's been

      22       shifted from refueling 16 to refueling 17.

      23                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.

      24                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  And that was

      25       resulted, I think, from the blade row disk slipped
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       1       during some testing.  And then subsequent to that,

       2       Progress, in your opinion, prudently exercised all of

       3       its contractual rights, not only to protect its

       4       ratepayers, but to ensure that the equipment provided

       5       would protect and maintain the desired uprate output at

       6       the plant; is that correct?

       7                 THE WITNESS:  Absolutely.  We studied

       8       carefully other options other than these turbines and

       9       came to a technical and financial decision that lined up

      10       in agreement that these were the right turbines for the

      11       uprate, provided the best benefit to the customer.  And

      12       we have strongly taken advantage of our contractual

      13       rights to, to ensure that a cost increase did not occur

      14       to the customer, and we're planning on installing those

      15       turbines now with confidence.

      16                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  And there are some,

      17       some -- there is some information that still remains

      18       confidential on this issue that I think generally deals

      19       with the business acumen that went into making that

      20       decision in the best interest of ratepayers and to

      21       preserve the uprate option.  Do you see any problem with

      22       that coming to fruition in terms of what's been

      23       presented?

      24                 THE WITNESS:  No.  We're confident that --

      25       you're talking about the low pressure turbines?
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       1                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Yes, sir.

       2                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.  Yes.  I have high

       3       confidence that we'll be successful with completion of

       4       that contract in, in time for the next outage.  The

       5       material's all but manufactured.  There's some more

       6       testing to put in place.  But from a contract

       7       standpoint, we're in very good condition.  We have the

       8       right necessary angles covered in legal space as well.

       9                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  And just two or

      10       three final questions.  Page 26 of the prefiled

      11       testimony.  Progress performed an updated feasibility

      12       analysis on the CR3 uprate and it still shows positive

      13       economic benefit based on the current state of the

      14       project; is that correct?

      15                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.  And obviously the

      16       factors shift around, but it's in the neighborhood of

      17       $800 million of net value to the customer.

      18                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Positive benefit to the

      19       customer?

      20                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.

      21                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  And that's over the

      22       life of the project; is that correct?

      23                 THE WITNESS:  That's correct.  It's still a

      24       cost saving in fuel to the customer for the uprate of

      25       something north of $2 billion and in the neighborhood of
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       1       800 million net present value.

       2                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  And on page 27, and

       3       I think this is my second to last question, I think you

       4       previously stated the project in your professional

       5       opinion is still technically feasible and achievable to

       6       the uprate.

       7                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.

       8                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  And from a

       9       regulatory and legal perspective, on pages 28 and 29 you

      10       speak about lessons learned regarding LARs.  And, you

      11       know, certainly in response to some of the

      12       cross-examination you had as well as questions from the

      13       bench, again, very candid.  You told us the good and the

      14       bad in terms of what was happening, and I think that's a

      15       constructive part of the review process here.

      16                 But in terms of the lessons learned on Point

      17       Beach, again, I think you mentioned that's, that's not a

      18       Progress project, it's another company's project, and

      19       that application for the LAR was denied.  And at this

      20       point in the game you're still looking at what the NRC

      21       requires in terms of, of specking out the LAR to gain

      22       successful NRC approvals.  Is that generally correct of

      23       what I've heard your testimony to be?

      24                 THE WITNESS:  That is correct.  And if you'll

      25       give me just a second.  The Point Beach application
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       1       right now is targeted for approval soon.  But we

       2       certainly have been able to apply those lessons to our

       3       application, did cost, a cost and scope increase

       4       associated with that.  But we're confident we've

       5       incorporated in there, we have the Point Beach lessons

       6       learned in our application as verified by my expert

       7       panel and our own company review.

       8                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Very well.  Thank you.

       9                 And any additional questions from the bench?

      10                 Seeing none, staff?

      11                 MR. YOUNG:  Staff has no questions at this

      12       time.

      13                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Very well.

      14       And will Mr. Franke be -- I guess he's going to be a

      15       rebuttal witness.  So, Mr. Franke, you may step down and

      16       we'll recall you at the appropriate time.

      17                 All right.  If --

      18                 MR. YOUNG:  Mr. Chairman?

      19                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Yes.

      20                 MR. YOUNG:  At this time I think the company

      21       would like to request that Mr. Franke's exhibits be

      22       moved in.  I know OPC has some exhibits also.

      23                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Yeah.  I was going, I was

      24       going to get to that next, but I just wanted to let him

      25       step down, if that's appropriate, which I believe it is.
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       1                 Okay.  I'll take up exhibits.

       2                 MR. WALLS:  Yes.  Mr. Franke has two direct

       3       exhibits, JF-1 and JF-2, that are identified as staff

       4       exhibits on the staff exhibit list, 19 and 20.

       5                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  Any objection to

       6       entering exhibits 19 and 20 into the record?  Seeing

       7       none, show it done.

       8                 (Exhibits 19 and 20 admitted into the record.)

       9                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Public Counsel would move 198

      10       through 207.

      11                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  Any objection?

      12                 MR. WALLS:  No.

      13                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.

      14                 MR. YOUNG:  No objection.  What about 193

      15       through 194, 195, 196 and 197?

      16                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  That was my next point.  I

      17       was going to get to that.  So why don't we slow down a

      18       little bit there.

      19                 Mr. Rehwinkel, it seems when you began your

      20       cross-examination --

      21                 MR. REHWINKEL:  I apologize.  I was --

      22                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  I think it started with

      23       193.

      24                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Actually I need to move 191.

      25                 MR. YOUNG:  Yes.
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       1                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.

       2                 MR. REHWINKEL:  And then 193.

       3                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Hold on.  Any objection to

       4       191?

       5                 MR. WALLS:  No.

       6                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Hearing none, show it

       7       entered.

       8                 (Exhibit 191 admitted into the record.)

       9                 MR. REHWINKEL:  And then 193 through 197.

      10                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.

      11                 MR. WALLS:  No objection.

      12                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  No objection

      13       on 193 through 197.  Show that done.

      14                 (Exhibits 193 through 197 admitted into the

      15       record.)

      16                 And that leaves us with Exhibits 198 through

      17       207, I believe, are the remaining exhibits.

      18                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Yes, I would move those.

      19                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Any objection?

      20                 MR. WALLS:  No.

      21                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  Hearing none, show

      22       Exhibits 198 through 207 entered into the record.

      23                 (Exhibits 198 through 207 admitted into the

      24       record.)

      25                 And I believe that will allow us to call the
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       1       next witness.

       2                 MS. HUHTA:  Progress calls Sue Hardison.

       3                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Very well.

       4       And has Ms. Hardison been previously sworn?

       5                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, I have.

       6                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Thank you.

       7                             SUE HARDISON

       8       was called as a witness on behalf of Progress Energy

       9       Florida and, having been duly sworn, testified as

      10       follows:

      11                          DIRECT EXAMINATION

      12       BY MS. HUHTA:

      13            Q.   Good morning, Ms. Hardison.  Will you please

      14       introduce yourself to the Commission and provide your

      15       business address.

      16            A.   Yes.  Good morning.  My name is Sue Hardison.

      17       My business address is 410 South Wilmington Street in

      18       Raleigh, North Carolina.

      19            Q.   And you have already been sworn in; correct?

      20            A.   Yes, I have.

      21            Q.   And who do you work for and what is your

      22       position?

      23            A.   I work for Progress Energy Carolina.  I'm

      24       employed by them as the General Manager, Business

      25       Services Corporate Development Group.
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       1            Q.   Have you filed direct testimony on March 1st,

       2       2010, and April 30th, 2010, in this proceeding?

       3            A.   Yes, I have.

       4            Q.   Do you have copies with you?

       5            A.   I have copies of both my testimony and

       6       exhibits that I cosponsor with Witness Garrett, and

       7       exhibits that I cosponsor with Witness Foster.

       8            Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Do you have any changes to

       9       make to your prefiled testimony and exhibits?

      10            A.   Yes.  Actually I do have one change to make to

      11       my March 1 testimony.  It is on page 22.  The sentence

      12       that begins on line 5, "The COLA was docketed by the NRC

      13       in 2009."  I apologize.  That is a typo.  It should be

      14       2008.

      15            Q.   Other than this one correction, Ms. Hardison,

      16       if I asked you the same questions in your prefiled

      17       testimony today, would you give the same answers that

      18       are in your testimony?

      19            A.   Yes, I would.

      20                 MS. HUHTA:  We request that the prefiled

      21       testimony from March 1st, 2010, and April 30th, 2010, of

      22       Ms. Hardison be moved into evidence today as if read.

      23                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  The prefiled

      24       testimony of witness Hardison will be entered into the

      25       record as though read.  Thank you.
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       1       BY MS. HUHTA:

       2            Q.   Thank you.  Ms. Hardison, do you have a

       3       summary of your prefiled testimony?

       4            A.   Yes, I do.

       5            Q.   Will you please provide that summary to the

       6       Commission?

       7            A.   Certainly.

       8                 My name is Sue Hardison.  My direct testimony

       9       filed March 1, 2010, explains the prudence of the

      10       company's Levy nuclear project, or LNP, actual costs

      11       incurred in 2009, and its project management,

      12       contracting and cost oversight controls for 2009.

      13                 I also filed direct testimony on April 30,

      14       2010, explaining the reasonableness of the LNP actual

      15       estimated cost for 2010 and projected cost for 2011.

      16                 I am available to answer questions regarding

      17       my testimony.

      18                 MS. HUHTA:  We tender Ms. Hardison for cross.

      19                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Very well.  Thank you.

      20                 Mr. Rehwinkel, you're recognized for

      21       cross-examination.

      22                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I

      23       would like to -- I'm going to pass out two exhibits at

      24       this point in time.

      25                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Those, do
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       1       those need to be marked?

       2                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Yes.

       3                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  That would be Number 208

       4       and 209.

       5                 MR. REHWINKEL:  208 would be, on the cover it

       6       says James, but it should say Janus, J-A-N-U-S, Janus

       7       Interview.  And 209 would be LNP Master Plan.

       8                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  It sounds like something

       9       out of a Mad Max movie.

      10                 MR. REHWINKEL:  That is the LNP Integrated

      11       Master Plan.

      12                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Those have

      13       been marked.

      14                 (Exhibits 208 and 209 marked for

      15       identification.)

      16                          CROSS EXAMINATION

      17       BY MR. REHWINKEL:

      18            Q.   Good morning, Ms. Hardison.

      19            A.   Good morning, sir.

      20            Q.   Just a few questions about your testimony.

      21       You are an accountant by training?

      22            A.   Yes, sir, I am.

      23            Q.   Okay.  You are a CPA?

      24            A.   Yes, sir, in North Carolina.

      25            Q.   Okay.  And do you have any -- are you an
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       1       engineer in any way?

       2            A.   No, sir, I am not.

       3            Q.   Okay.  You have not overseen the construction

       4       of a nuclear plant.

       5            A.   No, sir, I have not.

       6            Q.   Have you overseen the construction of an

       7       electric generation facility?

       8            A.   I have not overseen it, sir, but I have

       9       provided project control support for the construction of

      10       combined cycle plants.

      11            Q.   Okay.  And does project control support

      12       involve the administration of contracts governing the

      13       contractors?

      14            A.   We typically do contract administration

      15       regarding change order management as part of the

      16       process, and ensuring that the invoices are paid in

      17       accordance with the terms and conditions of the

      18       contract.

      19            Q.   Okay.  In your role, your current role with

      20       regard to the Levy project, did you have a predecessor?

      21            A.   The information under Levy financial services,

      22       sir, previously was managed by another organization, so

      23       I did have a predecessor.

      24            Q.   Okay.  With respect to your role of the

      25       nuclear, of the Levy nuclear plant project, would you
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       1       say that you are in, more in the role of contract

       2       administration and oversight than construction

       3       oversight?

       4            A.   Contract administration and support, sir, is

       5       one of the support services I provide.  We are currently

       6       not in a construction phase for the Levy plant.  We have

       7       been in certain phases of the transmission side.  But,

       8       no, I am not doing -- at this point there is no

       9       construction.

      10            Q.   Okay.  Would it ever be contemplated that you

      11       would oversee the construction of the nuclear plant if,

      12       if it ever comes to pass?

      13            A.   When the nuclear plant is constructed, sir, I

      14       will provide project control support at the site, but I

      15       will not be overseeing direct construction.  That's not

      16       my expectation.

      17            Q.   Okay.  Do you have what's been identified as

      18       Exhibit 208?

      19            A.   There's not a number.  I apologize, sir.  Can

      20       you provide me a --

      21            Q.   It's the Janus interview with Mr. Doughty's --

      22            A.   Yes, sir, I do have a copy of that.

      23            Q.   Have you had a chance to review this document?

      24            A.   I just received this document this week, sir.

      25            Q.   Okay.
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       1            A.   It's the first time I had seen it.

       2            Q.   Before you took the stand today, have you had

       3       a chance to review it?

       4            A.   I had a chance to go over it.  Yes, sir.

       5            Q.   And this is a, a draft of interview notes that

       6       Janus and Mr. Doughty's team conducted of yourself; is

       7       that correct?

       8            A.   That is correct, sir.

       9            Q.   On February 9th of this year?

      10            A.   Yes.

      11            Q.   Is there anything in these notes that you

      12       would consider to be incorrect with respect to the way

      13       they're presented?

      14            A.   It's difficult to say, sir, because the notes

      15       seem to be just a transcript of someone's thoughts, and

      16       it's difficult to tell without a question and answer

      17       format what the context was.  And some of the words and

      18       phrases, sir, frankly were not familiar to me.

      19            Q.   Okay.  Is there anything in here that you

      20       believe is a mischaracterization of the discussion that

      21       you had with Mr. Doughty?

      22            A.   Well, again, sir, without it being in a Q and

      23       A format and a topic, some of the things seem

      24       inconsistent.  If you look at one line, the next line

      25       actually doesn't make much sense.  So if you have a
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       1       specific area, sir, you'd like to address, I can look at

       2       that.

       3            Q.   Okay.  Well, could you give me an example of

       4       what you think is inconsistent?

       5            A.   Yes, sir.  If you'll refer to page 3.

       6            Q.   Yes.

       7            A.   From the bottom there's a section called Using

       8       Probabilistic Estimates.  And the gist of the discussion

       9       seems to be probabilistic risk assessment.  We don't use

      10       probabilistic estimates, so that was confusing to me.

      11       I'm not sure what the original topic was.

      12            Q.   Okay.

      13            A.   And there is an area there, sir, where they've

      14       typed that I referred to a person as a master of

      15       something.  I sincerely hope my words were manager.

      16            Q.   Okay.

      17            A.   But there are numerous examples like that

      18       actually, sir.  So, again, if you could direct me to

      19       specifically what you're looking at, that would help.

      20            Q.   Okay.  On the second page.

      21            A.   Yes, sir.

      22            Q.   Page 2 of 4, in the, near the middle, above

      23       the bold, there's a heading that says Major Recent

      24       Initiatives Accounting/Finance.

      25            A.   Oh, yes, sir.
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       1            Q.   Is this essentially, is this a high level

       2       description of kind of the way you've approached the EPC

       3       contract as it relates to the EP -- to the Levy plant?

       4            A.   Yes, sir.  The context of this discussion was

       5       that we applied -- my group had been providing financial

       6       services support for other major projects in the

       7       company.  One of our lessons learned, sir, is that it's

       8       very helpful for us to look at the actual assets that

       9       are going to be constructed at a very detailed level,

      10       and to break the project down into those types of

      11       discrete elements.  It allows us better tracking for our

      12       project managers and it allows us better variance

      13       explanations, if you will.  So we did apply that lesson

      14       learned when we moved into merging the Levy plant as

      15       part of our responsibilities.

      16            Q.   Okay.  This, this would be in the event that

      17       construction actually occurs at that site?

      18            A.   It would be when construction occurs.  Yes,

      19       sir.

      20            Q.   Okay.  Well, you're not testifying that

      21       construction will occur, are you?

      22            A.   No, sir.  I am testifying that we subdivided

      23       the accounting projects to be consistent with the assets

      24       to be built.

      25            Q.   Okay.  If they are built.
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       1            A.   Well, sir, my, my work is to look at it in the

       2       context of where it is now, and that is my assumption,

       3       sir, is that they will be built.

       4            Q.   Okay.  Do you have a copy of Exhibit 209,

       5       which is the only other, which is the Levy nuclear

       6       project integrated master, integrated master plan?

       7            A.   Yes, sir, I do.

       8            Q.   Are you familiar with this document?

       9            A.   Yes, sir, I am.

      10            Q.   Now the first, actually what I have passed

      11       out, is it fair to represent, are involving iterations

      12       of this document?

      13            A.   Yes, sir.  The iterations, as I understand

      14       them from this document, were we received a set of

      15       information of schedule detail from the consortium, and

      16       we did supply on the front side our licensing and

      17       permitting scheduling evolution and our, at the bottom

      18       our transmission.  The middle part would have come from

      19       the consortium per their requirements.

      20            Q.   Okay.  And when you say the middle part, is

      21       that the part that is in, that is in yellow

      22       highlighting?

      23            A.   Yes, sir.  It's difficult for me to see yellow

      24       highlighting on this one.  I apologize.

      25            Q.   Well, I'll just, all I want to do is kind of
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       1       understand what this document says.  Now on the first

       2       page of the exhibit, up in the upper right-hand side, it

       3       says REV:0 11/1/07.  Do you see that?

       4            A.   Yes, sir.

       5            Q.   And this would have been the very first

       6       iteration of this document; correct?

       7            A.   This would have been.

       8            Q.   And before your time?

       9            A.   Well before my time, sir.

      10            Q.   Okay.  And this basically shows the

      11       anticipated times at, time frames in November of 2007?

      12            A.   Yes, sir.

      13            Q.   Okay.  The next page is, upper right-hand

      14       corner, REV:1, and it shows January 3rd, 2008.

      15            A.   Yes, sir.

      16            Q.   And there are some changes between REV:0 and

      17       REV:1 to the document.  For instance, on the startup --

      18       I guess I should not mention anything in that.

      19            A.   No, sir.

      20            Q.   In the -- we see the difference, I guess, in

      21       2016 column.  If we look down, there's a March 8th date

      22       on the first page, in the far right-hand, year 2016.

      23            A.   Yes, sir.

      24            Q.   Okay.  And if we look to the second page, that

      25       date is now March -- is June 2nd, June 6th.
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       1            A.   June 6th.  Yes, sir.  I see that.

       2            Q.   Okay.  All right.  And then if we turn to the

       3       next page, it is March 7th.

       4            A.   I believe it's July 7th, sir; is that correct?

       5            Q.   I'm looking -- this is the one that says

       6       REV:2.

       7            A.   Oh, I'm sorry.  The date of the REV.

       8            Q.   Oh, I'm looking -- this is the date of the

       9       document.

      10            A.   Yes, sir.  Yes, sir.

      11            Q.   Okay.  And this says, "Approved Garry Miller,

      12       General Manager, MPD."

      13            A.   Yes, sir.  Yes, sir.

      14            Q.   Okay.  Now was Garry Miller your predecessor

      15       in any regard?

      16            A.   No, sir, he was not.

      17            Q.   Okay.  But he approved this document.  And in

      18       the -- now the year is 2017, and the corresponding dates

      19       that we looked at on the prior two pages is July 7th of

      20       2017; is that right?  That's for a unit, that's for a --

      21       I'm sorry.  If we look in 2016, the date is, is, the

      22       corresponding date is June 30th.

      23            A.   Yes, sir.

      24            Q.   Okay.

      25            A.   For the previous dates, let me go back, sir,
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       1       that you were looking at for that same item?

       2            Q.   Yes.

       3            A.   Let me just take a moment.

       4            Q.   Just so -- the area we're talking about here,

       5       the dates and identified activities are confidential; is

       6       that correct?

       7            A.   Yes, sir.  And you'll see there has been a

       8       further definition for the one Garry Miller has signed

       9       on March 7th.

      10            Q.   Okay.  And -- all right.  So when we move past

      11       this date -- the date of the third integrated master

      12       plan is March 7, 2008.  And then if we turn to the next

      13       page, it still says REV:2, but it says June 1st, 2009;

      14       is that correct?

      15            A.   It is correct, sir.

      16            Q.   And it says, "Approved," it says, "June 1st,

      17       2009 update/analysis," and it says, "Approved Garry

      18       Miller/Lew" --

      19            A.   Lewis Spragins.  Yes, sir.

      20            Q.   Right.  Okay.  And what is Lewis Spragins?

      21            A.   Mr. Spragins was previously, until actually

      22       just at this date when we came over was the Project

      23       Controls Manager.  When we merged at midyear we replaced

      24       Mr. Spragins with a different Project Controls Manager.

      25            Q.   Okay.  But now what's different about this
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       1       document from the prior in a material way would be a red

       2       dotted line here; is that correct?  A red dotted box

       3       that, that encircles these activities.

       4            A.   Yes, sir.

       5            Q.   And what, what does that represent?

       6            A.   We have a note on here, sir, because what

       7       we've done is frozen this portion of the schedule.  This

       8       REV would have been after the partial suspension

       9       notification.  And so really this block was frozen until

      10       the negotiations and schedule analysis.

      11            Q.   Okay.  All right.  And then we start to see

      12       above that in the first line licensing and permitting.

      13       These blue dates and descriptions are NRC activities.

      14            A.   Yes, sir.  For internal.

      15            Q.   With the expected dates at these, at this

      16       time.

      17            A.   At the time this was prepared.  Yes, sir.

      18            Q.   Okay.  So we see a draft environmental impact

      19       statement expected in October of 2009, a final

      20       environmental impact statement in September of 2010, and

      21       then in May 5th, 2011, a final safety evaluation report.

      22            A.   Yes, sir.  I think the point that you're

      23       getting to are these dates have shifted and we do

      24       prepare the schedule.  But if you're looking at an

      25       understanding, sir, of the date shifts in our NRC, I
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       1       would have to defer you to Mr. Elnitsky.

       2            Q.   I understand.

       3            A.   Thank you.

       4            Q.   The next page, the, it says REV:2 12/31/2009.

       5            A.   Yes, sir.

       6            Q.   Now this is one that it appears that you --

       7            A.   Yes, sir.

       8            Q.   -- signed or you initialed in your role.  It

       9       says, "General Manager."

      10            A.   CDG Business Services.

      11            Q.   Okay.  And Lee Formanek?

      12            A.   Lee Formanek is the Project Controls Manager.

      13            Q.   Okay.  And this shows some revisions to the

      14       dates that we just talked about with respect to the NRC.

      15            A.   Yes, it does.

      16            Q.   And it still says, "Note, EPC and transmission

      17       project schedules on hold," and it has your initials

      18       inside the box.

      19            A.   Yes, sir.

      20            Q.   Okay.  Now the next page says REV:2,

      21       February 26th, 2010, update.

      22            A.   Yes, sir.

      23            Q.   And it says, "Note," inside the red box, your

      24       initials, it says, "EPC and transmission project

      25       schedules on hold until in-service dates are
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       1       determined."

       2            A.   Yes, sir.

       3            Q.   Now has this document been revised?

       4            A.   We have not revised this yet, sir, because we

       5       require the consortium to provide us sequencing.  And

       6       Mr. Elnitsky could speak to one of the primary drivers

       7       right now is the sequencing with our long-lead material,

       8       and that is in negotiation.  Rather than spend efforts,

       9       sir, we would wait until we got that information data.

      10            Q.   So --

      11            A.   The changes though, however, sir, if you will

      12       allow me, we do continue to track our internal schedules

      13       related to our work with the NRC, and these dates

      14       referenced here are not any different right now than

      15       they are here.

      16            Q.   When you say these dates --

      17            A.   Well, I apologize, sir.  Our licensing and

      18       permitting line at the top.

      19            Q.   Okay.  So there have been changes from, if I

      20       compare the December 31, 2009, estimates of the NRC

      21       activities to the February 2010 activities, there were

      22       changes there.  But you're saying the, the dates that

      23       you have projected for the February 2010 master plan are

      24       your best estimate at this point.

      25            A.   The key dates in there, sir, would be the
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       1       issuance of the final environmental impact statement and

       2       the final safety evaluation report, which are still

       3       expected to be issued in July.  I can't quite read.  I

       4       see the, I see them sort of on top of each other, sir.

       5       Do you see the FEIS on the top of the line?

       6            Q.   Yes.

       7            A.   And the FSER (phonetic) on the bottom?

       8            Q.   Yes.

       9            A.   Those are still the dates that we're showing.

      10       And we are still showing, sir, expecting the COLA, and,

      11       again, Mr. Elnitsky's testimony addresses this more

      12       thoroughly and technically, in the fourth quarter of

      13       2012.

      14            Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  And I appreciate that

      15       clarification.  I want to ask you to go back to the

      16       REV:1, which is the January 3rd, 2008.

      17            A.   Yes, sir.

      18            Q.   And the next to the last line item in this

      19       master plan says, "Plant Operation Staffing."  Do you

      20       see that?

      21            A.   Yes, sir, I do.

      22            Q.   And that's, that's -- this is not

      23       confidential, this line.

      24            A.   No, it's not.

      25            Q.   Okay.  And we see a January 3rd, 2011,
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       1       starting point for this dark blue line; is that correct?

       2            A.   Yes, sir, we do.

       3            Q.   Now the activities that are covered by that

       4       line, are, are they generally five years in advance of

       5       what was at this time the anticipated in-service date of

       6       Levy Unit 1?

       7            A.   For the timing of when you bring licensed

       8       operators and staff on, sir, I would have to refer to a

       9       nuclear engineer.  So I would have to defer that, sir,

      10       to Mr. Elnitsky.

      11            Q.   Okay.  So you don't know about this?

      12            A.   We would have to talk to engineering when we

      13       staff that line.  And since I didn't prepare this

      14       particular one, sir, I'm sure there were discussions

      15       with the appropriate personnel.

      16            Q.   Okay.  Well, let me ask you this.  In the

      17       documents that we get to in the last part of the exhibit

      18       that are signed off by you, are you familiar with the

      19       plant operations staffing aspect on those pages?

      20            A.   Yes, I am, sir.  But if you'll look, the red

      21       dotted line that says all of these elements are on hold

      22       until we get the rest of the schedule updated, we have

      23       also frozen those.

      24            Q.   Okay.  So are you familiar with an issue

      25       that's been raised in this docket in the staff audit
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       1       report about the operational readiness group?

       2            A.   Oh, yes, sir, I have.

       3            Q.   Would the operational readiness group have any

       4       relationship to this blue line here?

       5            A.   Operational readiness for full staffing, sir,

       6       would be related.  But in the context of what's been

       7       asked and answered in, I believe, interrogatories with

       8       operational readiness, those costs that we're currently

       9       incurring now, sir, are not so much staffing as they are

      10       activities with our AP 1000 owners group, which is also

      11       known as APOG.  Again, Mr. Elnitsky sits on that

      12       committee and can speak to it.  But the two primary

      13       activities are the development of training and

      14       operational manuals, which will be necessary for the

      15       AP 1000 fleet, and we are, sir, actively engaged in

      16       those activities.  So we characterize that under

      17       operational readiness.  But there is no staffing at this

      18       point.  I believe it's two individuals and a part-time

      19       contractor.

      20            Q.   Now when that group was initially established,

      21       it was, it was in the time frame where it would have

      22       been five years in advance of the then in-service date

      23       estimate; correct?

      24            A.   Again, sir, it is laid out that way on the

      25       schedule.  But as to the timing of when you have to
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       1       bring on the full staff for an operating plant, I would

       2       have to defer to Mr. Elnitsky.

       3            Q.   Okay.  And I appreciate that, and I will.

       4            A.   You're welcome, sir.

       5            Q.   With respect to this, you mentioned there's

       6       two individuals now.  Is that -- has there been a change

       7       in the staffing level of that group since 2009?

       8            A.   There's been a change in the level.  We had a

       9       vice president retire, sir.  And I believe it was

      10       earlier -- I can't remember honestly, sir, if it was

      11       earlier this year or last year.  So there's no longer a

      12       vice president for that organization, but there are two

      13       different individuals.

      14            Q.   Now do you expect there to be in 2011 and 2012

      15       that the operational readiness group will be --

      16            A.   I don't expect any expansion of staff, sir, in

      17       the next 24 months.

      18            Q.   Do you expect any contracting of staff in the

      19       next --

      20            A.   I wouldn't expect so, sir.  But I would defer

      21       to Mr. Elnitsky and the working group for the AP 1000.

      22            Q.   Okay.

      23            A.   He would know more about what our activities

      24       will be in the next couple of years.

      25            Q.   Okay.  Thank you for your, your answers.
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       1            A.   You're welcome, sir.

       2                 MR. REHWINKEL:  I have no further questions.

       3                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you.

       4                 Mr. Brew?

       5                 MR. BREW:  Thank you.  I have nothing for this

       6       witness.

       7                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Very well.

       8                 Ms. Kaufman?

       9                 MS. KAUFMAN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I have

      10       no questions.

      11                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Very well.

      12                 SACE?

      13                 MR. DAVIS:  No questions.

      14                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Very well.  Any questions

      15       from the bench?

      16                 Hearing none, staff?

      17                 MR. YOUNG:  No questions.

      18                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  Can we take up

      19       exhibits --

      20                 MR. YOUNG:  Actually redirect, if any.

      21                 MS. HUHTA:  No redirect.

      22                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Exhibits then?

      23                 MS. HUHTA:  Ms. Hardison didn't have any

      24       exhibits attached to her prefiled testimony.

      25                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.
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       1                 Mr. Rehwinkel?

       2                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Public Counsel would move

       3       2,000 -- I mean 208 and 209.

       4                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Any objection?

       5                 Hearing -- Mr. Burnett?

       6                 MR. BURNETT:  Thank you, Commissioner Skop.

       7       No objection.  I just did want to note I appreciate

       8       Mr. Rehwinkel's caution, but on Exhibit 209, the only

       9       elements that remain confidential are the last three

      10       pages that we blocked out by a pink box.

      11                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Yes.

      12                 MR. BURNETT:  Those are the only remaining

      13       confidential portions.  So I just wanted to make sure

      14       that all, that it was clear all the other portions may

      15       be entered into the record unredacted.

      16                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  Very well.

      17                 And, staff, you're aware of that, based on

      18       Mr. Burnett's representations.

      19                 So hearing no objection, Exhibits 208 and 209

      20       will be entered.

      21                 (Exhibits 208 and 209 admitted into the

      22       record.)

      23                 And at this point, this may be a good breaking

      24       point for lunch, unless we want to move forward briefly.

      25       Is there concern?
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       1                 MS. HUHTA:  I just wanted to ask, Ms. Hardison

       2       does not have any rebuttal.  May she be excused from the

       3       remainder?

       4                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Yes, she may be excused.

       5       Yes, I was planning on doing that.

       6                 MS. HUHTA:  Thank you.

       7                 THE WITNESS:  Thank you.  Thank you,

       8       Commissioners.

       9                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you.

      10                 MR. WALLS:  Commissioner Skop, I think our

      11       next witness is Ken Karp.  And he's a stipulated

      12       witness, so we could go --

      13                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Yes.  Let's take care of

      14       that while we have a few minutes.  So if you could move

      15       forward with that on Mr. Karp.

      16                 MS. HUHTA:  Certainly, Commissioner Skop.

      17       PEF's next witness is Mr. Kenneth Karp, and the parties

      18       have agreed to waive cross and to stipulate to the

      19       entrance of his testimony.  He had two sets of prefiled

      20       testimony dated March 1st, 2010, and April 30th, 2010,

      21       and we would request that those two prefiled sets of

      22       testimony be entered into the record as though read.

      23                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Very well.

      24       The two sets of prefiled testimony, upon agreement for

      25       the parties for Mr. Karp, will be entered into the
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       1       record as though read.

       2                 And are there any exhibits that we need to

       3       take up for Mr. Karp?

       4                 MS. HUHTA:  No exhibits from Progress.

       5                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Very well.

       6       All right.  Show that done.

       7

       8

       9

      10

      11

      12

      13

      14

      15

      16

      17

      18

      19

      20

      21

      22

      23

      24

      25
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       1                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  And at this point,

       2       Commissioners, I think it's a good breaking point for

       3       lunch.  And why don't we reconvene at 1:15.  So we'll

       4       stand on recess until 1:15.

       5                 (Recess taken.)

       6                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  At this point we're

       7       going to go back on the record.  And Mr. Karp's, where

       8       we left off, we had admitted his testimony and exhibits,

       9       which he had none, into evidence.  And I believe that

      10       concludes Progress's case in chief without the rebuttal

      11       testimony that'll come later.  So at this point it takes

      12       us to the Intervenor and staff direct testimony.

      13                 And my understanding, based on the order of

      14       remaining witnesses, is that Dr. Cooper from SACE,

      15       Mr. Gundersen both have testimony that will be, and

      16       exhibits will be admitted with no questions.  So I'd

      17       look to SACE at this time to make those admissions in

      18       evidence.

      19                 MR. DAVIS:  Thank you, Commissioner.  I would

      20       state for the record that Dr. Mark Cooper's testimony

      21       has been stipulated to by the parties, and we would move

      22       that it be admitted into the record as if read.

      23                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Very well.

      24       The prefiled testimony of Dr. Mark Cooper will be

      25       entered into the record as though read.
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       1                 And do we have any exhibits or rebuttal

       2       testimony for Dr. Cooper?

       3                 MR. DAVIS:  There will be rebuttal

       4       testimony -- no, not by Dr. Cooper.  No.

       5                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  All right.

       6                 MR. DAVIS:  But he has exhibits.  He has

       7       MNC-1 through MNC-20.

       8                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.

       9                 MR. DAVIS:  Which were part of the

      10       stipulation, so we would move those.

      11                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  Can you repeat

      12       those again for me, please?

      13                 MR. DAVIS:  Yes.  Thank you.  MNC-1 through

      14       MNC-20.

      15                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Very well.  Those have

      16       been marked for hearing ID as Exhibits 34 through 50.

      17                 MR. DAVIS:  I'm sorry.  I apologize.  Yes.

      18                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  Those have been

      19       marked for ID as hearing Exhibits 34 through 53, I

      20       believe.

      21                 MR. DAVIS:  That's correct.

      22                 (Exhibits 34 through 53 marked for

      23       identification.)

      24                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  Are there any

      25       objections to entering those into the record?
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       1                 Okay.  Hearing none, show those entered.

       2                 (Exhibits 34 through 53 admitted into the

       3       record.)

       4

       5

       6

       7
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       9

      10

      11

      12

      13

      14
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      16
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      18

      19

      20

      21

      22

      23

      24

      25
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       1                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  And I believe that takes

       2       care of Dr. Cooper.  And if you could proceed with

       3       Mr. Gundersen.

       4                 MR. DAVIS:  Yes.  Commissioner.  We have

       5       stipulations from the parties to the admission of the

       6       testimony of Mr. Gundersen, and we would move that it be

       7       admitted into the record as if read.

       8                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  Any objection?  All

       9       right.  The prefiled testimony of Mr. Gundersen will be

      10       entered into the record as though read.

      11                 And are there any exhibits or rebuttal

      12       testimony for Mr. Gundersen?

      13                 MR. DAVIS:  Yes.  Mr. Gundersen has Exhibit 54

      14       through Exhibit 60.

      15                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  All right.  Any

      16       objections to moving Exhibit 54 through 60 into the

      17       record at this time?  All right.  Hearing none, show

      18       that done.  And I believe that takes care of

      19       Mr. Gundersen.

      20                 (Exhibits 54 through 60 marked for

      21       identification and admitted into the record.)

      22

      23

      24

      25
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       1                 MR. DAVIS:  That takes care of the SACE

       2       witnesses.  Thank you.

       3                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Very well.  So

       4       I believe now we'll look to Public Counsel to call their

       5       witness, and I believe that's Dr. Jacobs.

       6                 MR. YOUNG:  Mr. Chairman, it's my

       7       understanding that Mr. Rehwinkel just stepped out for a

       8       second.  He, he brought the wrong testimony as regards

       9       to --

      10                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  We will hold

      11       in place then.

      12                 MR. YOUNG:  -- Mr. Jacobs.  And here he is

      13       right now walking in.

      14                 MR. REHWINKEL:  The Citizens call Dr. William

      15       Jacobs.

      16                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  And, Mr. Jacobs, have you

      17       been previously sworn?

      18                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, I have.

      19                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Very well.

      20       You may proceed.

      21                    WILLIAM R. JACOBS, JR., Ph.D.

      22       was called as a witness on behalf of the Citizens of the

      23       State of Florida and, having been duly sworn, testified

      24       as follows:

      25                          DIRECT EXAMINATION
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       1       BY MR. REHWINKEL:

       2            Q.   Can you state your name?

       3            A.   My name is William Jacobs.

       4            Q.   And by whom are you employed?

       5            A.   By -- I'm Vice President of GDS Associates.

       6            Q.   And on whose behalf are you testifying here

       7       today?

       8            A.   Testifying on behalf of the Florida Office of

       9       Public Counsel.

      10            Q.   Dr. Jacobs, did you cause to be prepared 22

      11       pages of prefiled direct testimony in this matter?

      12            A.   Yes, I did.

      13            Q.   Do you have any changes or corrections to make

      14       to that testimony?

      15            A.   Yes, I have one minor typo correction on page

      16       13, line 15.  The second word, T-O, to, should be

      17       changed to of, O-F, so the sentence would read,

      18       "Downplaying the reality of the identified risks."

      19       That's all.

      20            Q.   Thank you.  Dr. Jacobs, if I, with that

      21       correction, if I asked you the questions contained in

      22       your prefiled direct testimony today, would your answers

      23       be the same?

      24            A.   Yes, they would.

      25                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Commissioners, I would move at
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       1       this time that Dr. Jacobs' prefiled direct testimony be

       2       moved into the record.

       3                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  The prefiled testimony of

       4       Dr. William Jacobs will be entered into the record as

       5       though read.

       6       BY MR. REHWINKEL:

       7            Q.   Dr. Jacobs, did you also prepare three

       8       exhibits?

       9            A.   Yes, I did.

      10            Q.   Identified as WRJ(PEF)-1 through 3?

      11            A.   That's correct.

      12                 MR. REHWINKEL:  And for the, for the record,

      13       Exhibits 31 through 33.

      14                 (Exhibits 31 through 33 marked for

      15       identification.)

      16       BY MR. REHWINKEL:

      17            Q.   Do you have any changes or corrections to make

      18       to those exhibits, Dr. Jacobs?

      19            A.   No, I do not.

      20

      21

      22

      23

      24

      25
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       1       BY MR. REHWINKEL:

       2            Q.   Dr. Jacobs, do you have a summary of your

       3       testimony less than five minutes?

       4            A.   Yes, I do.

       5            Q.   Could you give that at this time?

       6            A.   I'd be happy to.

       7                 Good afternoon, Madam Chairman and

       8       Commissioners.  Again, my name is William Jacobs.  I'm

       9       Vice President of GDS Associates, and I'm testifying

      10       here this afternoon on behalf of the Florida Office of

      11       Public Counsel.  I will address two major issues, the

      12       Levy County project and, or two major areas, excuse me,

      13       and the Crystal River Unit 3 EPU.

      14                 Turning first to the Levy County project, I

      15       reviewed the options that the company evaluated for the

      16       Levy County project following the decision by the NRC

      17       not to grant their limited work authorization as

      18       requested.  These options were to cancel the project

      19       immediately, to proceed full speed ahead, or the third

      20       option would be to delay the project by approximately

      21       five years, with the first unit starting up in the year

      22       2021.

      23                 Following my review of these options, I

      24       believe that there was another scenario that should have

      25       been evaluated by the company.  This scenario involves

                              FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                       725

       1       cancellation of the project following receipt of the

       2       combined license, which is, the combined license is

       3       anticipated to be received in late 2012, and at that

       4       point I believe it is a reasonable scenario that the

       5       company would conclude that the project should be

       6       canceled at that point.

       7                 The reason I believe this is a possible

       8       scenario is that there is no indication that the overall

       9       enterprise risks that the company has evaluated are

      10       declining.  The company metrics required to continue

      11       remain in question, and there is no sign of joint owners

      12       flocking to join the project at this point.  Therefore,

      13       the fourth scenario that I identified must be evaluated

      14       in order to make an informed decision.

      15                 It actually turns to, becomes a matter of risk

      16       versus cost.  If it is certain that the project would

      17       continue, then the company's option would be the proper

      18       one.  If it is certain that the project would be

      19       canceled, then it should be canceled sooner rather than

      20       later.

      21                 However, if there is uncertainty, as there is,

      22       there must be a balance between the risk and the cost to

      23       the ratepayers.  And, therefore, I recommend in my

      24       testimony that the company be required to analyze the

      25       fourth scenario that I have identified, and in light of
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       1       this analysis and the identified risks justify the

       2       option that they have, they have chosen.

       3                 Turning to the Crystal River Unit 3 EPU

       4       project, I believe that the company has chosen a

       5       nonconservative approach for implementation of the

       6       Crystal River Unit 3 EPU.  They will spend most of the

       7       money for the project before it is certain that they

       8       will receive permission from the NRC to increase the

       9       power level to gain the full 180 megawatts of additional

      10       power that the project is intended to deliver.  140 of

      11       the 180 megawatts comes from increased reactor power

      12       that must be authorized by the NRC by approval of the

      13       license amendment request.

      14                 They could have initiated the license

      15       amendment requests earlier to ensure approval or at

      16       least have a good indication of approval prior to

      17       spending the bulk of the money.  Many EPUs have been

      18       accomplished in the past, but this is the first for a

      19       Babcock & Wilcox project, and it is a very technically

      20       challenging project.

      21                 I want to clarify here that the prudence of

      22       their decision is not based on the decision that the NRC

      23       makes.  If full power is authorized by the NRC, then

      24       there is no impact and the issue of prudence is moot.

      25       However, if full power is not issued and there is
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       1       impact, then the prudence of the company's decisions

       2       should be reviewed in detail.

       3                 That concludes my statement.

       4                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Dr. Jacobs is tendered for

       5       cross-examination.

       6                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Very well.

       7                 Mr. Walls, you're recognized for

       8       cross-examination.

       9                          CROSS EXAMINATION

      10       BY MR. WALLS:

      11            Q.   Good afternoon, Dr. Jacobs.

      12            A.   Good afternoon.

      13            Q.   Dr. Jacobs, is it your opinion that Progress

      14       Energy Florida should cancel the Levy nuclear project?

      15            A.   No, that's not my opinion at this time.

      16            Q.   And is it your opinion, Dr. Jacobs, that

      17       Progress Energy Florida should terminate the EPC

      18       agreement and cancel the Levy nuclear project?

      19            A.   No, it is not.

      20            Q.   And, Dr. Jacobs, you would agree that the

      21       feasibility analysis that Progress Energy Florida

      22       provided this year was sufficient to demonstrate the

      23       feasibility of the Levy nuclear project; correct?

      24            A.   Yes, it does, given the assumptions that are

      25       in here and in that analysis.
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       1            Q.   And if you could turn to page 6, lines 7

       2       through 14 of your direct testimony.

       3            A.   Okay.

       4            Q.   And there you reference the company's

       5       strategic intent and objectives in developing the

       6       going-forward path for the Levy nuclear project from a

       7       March 8, 2010, senior management committee presentation;

       8       correct?

       9            A.   That's correct.

      10            Q.   Do you have that presentation with you?

      11            A.   I do not.

      12            Q.   Okay.

      13                 MS. HUHTA:  May I approach the witness?

      14       Excuse me.  May --

      15                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Yes, you may.

      16                 MS. HUHTA:  Thanks.

      17       BY MR. WALLS:

      18            Q.   And this senior management presentation is

      19       marked as Exhibit JE-2 in John Elnitsky's direct

      20       testimony?

      21            A.   Yes.  That's correct.  I have it.

      22            Q.   Okay.  And the reference in your testimony on

      23       page 6 at lines 7 through 14 is to page 2 of 15 of

      24       Exhibit Number JE-2; is that correct?

      25            A.   That's correct.  Yes.
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       1            Q.   Okay.  And you would agree that given the

       2       company's intent and given the objectives that they

       3       state in this March 8, 2010, senior management committee

       4       presentation that the company's actions were reasonable;

       5       correct?

       6            A.   Yes, I believe they were reasonable.

       7            Q.   And you would agree with me that you expressed

       8       no opinion in your testimony that the evaluation process

       9       the company undertook to make its decision was

      10       unreasonable or imprudent, you just believe they should

      11       have evaluated another scenario; is that correct?

      12            A.   Yes.  That's correct.

      13            Q.   Dr. Jacobs, your assignment included the

      14       review and evaluation of Progress Energy Florida's

      15       request to collect historical costs associated with the

      16       Levy nuclear project; correct?

      17            A.   That's correct.

      18            Q.   And you would agree with me that nowhere in

      19       your direct testimony do you express the opinion that

      20       Progress Energy Florida's Levy nuclear project costs for

      21       2009 are imprudent; correct?

      22            A.   That's correct.

      23            Q.   And you also indicate at page 3 of your direct

      24       testimony, lines 21 to 23 --

      25            A.   Okay.
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       1            Q.   -- that your assignment included reviewing and

       2       evaluating Progress Energy Florida's request for

       3       authority to collect projected costs associated with the

       4       Levy nuclear project; correct?

       5            A.   Yes.

       6            Q.   And by projected costs, you mean Progress

       7       Energy Florida's estimated 2010 and projected 2011 costs

       8       associated with the Levy nuclear project; right?

       9            A.   That's correct.

      10            Q.   And would you agree with me that in your

      11       testimony there is no opinion that any specific

      12       estimated 2010 or projected 2011 Levy nuclear project

      13       cost is unreasonable?

      14            A.   That's correct.

      15            Q.   And it's fair to say that you don't have an

      16       opinion this year that Progress Energy Florida's project

      17       management contracting and oversight controls for the

      18       Levy nuclear project are imprudent; correct?

      19            A.   That's correct.  I don't have an opinion that

      20       they're imprudent.  I don't -- I did not make an opinion

      21       on those topics.

      22            Q.   And you didn't make an opinion this year about

      23       the company's project management contracting oversight

      24       controls because you reviewed them last year and did not

      25       see any significant concerns with them; is that correct?
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       1            A.   That's correct.

       2            Q.   And you would also agree with me that nowhere

       3       in your testimony do you express the opinion that

       4       Progress Energy Florida's 2009 accounting and cost

       5       oversight controls for the Levy nuclear project are

       6       unreasonable or imprudent.

       7            A.   That's correct.

       8            Q.   I want to turn to the CR3 uprate project.  And

       9       again at page 3, lines 18 to 21 of your direct testimony

      10       you indicate your assignment included review and

      11       evaluation of Progress Energy Florida's request to

      12       collect historical costs for the Crystal River 3 unit

      13       uprate project; correct?

      14            A.   Yes.

      15            Q.   And would you agree with me within your

      16       testimony there is no expression of an opinion by you

      17       that Progress Energy Florida's CR3 uprate costs for 2009

      18       are imprudent?

      19            A.   Yes, I agree.

      20            Q.   You also indicate at page 3, lines 18 to 21 of

      21       your testimony that your assignment included reviewing

      22       and evaluating Progress Energy Florida's request for

      23       authority to collect projected costs associated with the

      24       CR3 uprate or EPU extended power uprate; correct?

      25            A.   Yes.
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       1            Q.   And by projected costs, you mean Progress

       2       Energy Florida's estimated 2010 and projected 2011 costs

       3       associated with the uprate project; correct?

       4            A.   That's correct.

       5            Q.   And would you agree with me that in your

       6       testimony there is no opinion that any specific

       7       estimated 2010 or projected 2011 CR3 uprate cost is

       8       unreasonable?

       9            A.   Yes.

      10            Q.   And you would also agree with me that nowhere

      11       in your testimony do you express an opinion that

      12       Progress Energy Florida's 2009 accounting and cost

      13       oversight controls for the CR3 uprate project were

      14       unreasonable or imprudent?

      15            A.   Yes, I agree.

      16            Q.   And it's true, Dr. Jacobs, that with respect

      17       to the CR3 uprate schedule, you're not expressing an

      18       opinion today that that uprate project schedule was

      19       imprudent; correct?

      20            A.   That's correct.  I have not done a detailed

      21       prudence analysis of the schedule.  If the NRC grants

      22       the, the full requested power uprate for the reactor and

      23       the full 180 power megawatts is achieved, then that

      24       topic is, is moot and doesn't need to be evaluated.

      25            Q.   Okay.  As you said, you're not expressing an
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       1       opinion today that their schedule is imprudent; correct?

       2            A.   That's correct.

       3            Q.   And you would also agree that you are not

       4       expressing the opinion that Progress Energy Florida

       5       should stop work on the Crystal River Unit 3 uprate

       6       project; correct?

       7            A.   No.  They should continue to work on it.

       8                 MR. WALLS:  That's all the questions I have.

       9                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you.

      10                 Any questions from the bench?

      11                 Commissioner Edgar, you're recognized.

      12                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Thank you.

      13                 Good afternoon.

      14                 THE WITNESS:  Good afternoon.

      15                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  You mentioned in your

      16       opening and in your prefiled testimony that you believe

      17       another possible scenario is the cancellation of the

      18       Levy County project after receipt of the combined

      19       license in 2012.

      20                 THE WITNESS:  That's correct, yes.  There's,

      21       there's a point, once they receive the combined license,

      22       a decision must be made whether to continue, authorize

      23       the EPC contractor to continue with the project or

      24       cancel it at that point.

      25                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Okay.  And I, and I
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       1       believe you also testified that in your opinion the risk

       2       factors are not declining and that there is not at this

       3       point in time a joint partner for the project.

       4                 THE WITNESS:  That's correct.

       5                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Okay.  Is the lack of a

       6       joint partner at this time a risk factor, a risk factor,

       7       one of the risk factors that you are mentioning?  And if

       8       so, how material is that point or fact?

       9                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, it is.  I know early on

      10       attaining, achieving a joint partner, joint ownership

      11       was very important to the company, and it continually

      12       shows up in their internal documents as an important

      13       factor that they're, that they're trying to achieve.  I

      14       think it would certainly help the economics from a

      15       Progress Energy perspective if they could have a joint

      16       ownership.  So I think that's an important factor.

      17                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  What other risk factors

      18       do you deem material to support your statement that

      19       cancellation after the combined license in 2012 is a

      20       realistic scenario, or a scenario of great potential,

      21       whatever would be your words?

      22                 THE WITNESS:  Let me address that.  You know,

      23       Mr. Lyash spent about 30 pages going through these risk

      24       factors, and we're kind of generally in agreement with

      25       identification of them.
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       1                 There are really three or four main factors I

       2       think that are influencing development of new nuclear

       3       power plants, and have changed significantly in the last

       4       several years.  And those are, one, due to the economic

       5       recession, the load growth is not what was projected.

       6       Another factor is the low cost of natural gas.  It's low

       7       and it's projected to be fairly low for the foreseeable

       8       future.  So that cuts against the benefits of nuclear

       9       power.  A third factor is the uncertainty in any type of

      10       carbon cost or carbon tax on fossil fuel plants.  And,

      11       you know, a carbon tax on either gas or a coal-fired

      12       plant helps nuclear.  So those are some of the major

      13       factors that are affecting the decision.

      14                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Okay.  Thank you.

      15                 THE WITNESS:  Okay.  Thank you.

      16                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Any additional questions

      17       from the bench?  Okay.

      18                 Mr. Jacobs, I just have one brief follow-up to

      19       a line of questioning that Mr. Walls asked.

      20                 You testified that in considering, in making a

      21       prudency determination, that in your opinion management

      22       I guess in, as you stated, failed to consider one option

      23       that involved termination of the entire project after

      24       the combined operating license was issued.  And if I

      25       understand your testimony correct, I think the question
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       1       I would have in that regard, in rendering a prudency

       2       determination, is it required for the Commission or

       3       required for management to anticipate and fully evaluate

       4       every possible alternative versus the reasonable

       5       alternatives that management has, has chosen to pursue?

       6                 THE WITNESS:  Well, I think they need to

       7       evaluate all reasonable alternatives that a, that a

       8       qualified utility manager should be anticipated would

       9       identify, given their, what they knew at the time.

      10                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Could there be, could

      11       there perhaps exist contractual obligations or

      12       conditions that would make choosing one course of action

      13       more preferable than another in rendering that, or

      14       considering such an option?

      15                 THE WITNESS:  Yes.  I mean, certainly the

      16       contractual items would have an impact on that.

      17                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Very well.  Thank you.

      18                 THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

      19                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Any questions

      20       from staff before we go to redirect?

      21                 MR. DAVIS:  I have one question.

      22                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.

      23                 MR. YOUNG:  I think --

      24                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  SACE.  Okay.  Go down the

      25       line.  All right.  Very well.  SACE, you're recognized.
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       1                          CROSS EXAMINATION

       2       BY MR. DAVIS:

       3            Q.   Dr. Jacobs, Gary Davis representing SACE.

       4       Just one question for you.  You would agree that your

       5       prefiled testimony expresses no opinion about the

       6       feasibility of the Levy nuclear project; correct?

       7            A.   That's correct.

       8            Q.   And you would also agree that your prefiled

       9       testimony expresses no opinion about whether or not

      10       Progress's actions that were decided by the board on

      11       March 8th, 2010, were reasonable.

      12                 MR. WALLS:  I'm going to object to this.  This

      13       is not cross-examination.

      14                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  To the objection.

      15                 MR. DAVIS:  Why is that?  It certainly is

      16       cross-examination.  It's certainly not friendly cross,

      17       because I'm just --

      18                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Mr. Walls, can you be a

      19       little bit more specific?

      20                 MR. WALLS:  I believe it is friendly cross

      21       because he's trying to establish a position consistent

      22       with what SACE is taking, and OPC and them are aligned.

      23                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Again, the Order

      24       Establishing Procedure and the Prehearing Order, you

      25       know, reflects that friendly cross should be limited.
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       1       Is there a way that perhaps you can reframe the question

       2       so that it's not friendly cross?

       3                 MR. DAVIS:  I can ask a more direct question

       4       rather than a leading question.

       5                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  We'll see if that

       6       will get us by the objection.  If not, Mr. Walls, you're

       7       free to object to the reframing of the question.

       8       BY MR. DAVIS:

       9            Q.   Does your prefiled testimony, Dr. Jacobs,

      10       contain any opinion about the reasonableness of the

      11       conduct of Progress Energy with regard to the Levy

      12       nuclear plant?

      13            A.   Well, it's in my testimony that I believe they

      14       should have considered the fourth scenario that I have

      15       identified.

      16            Q.   Other than that, there's no opinion about the,

      17       the scenarios that were analyzed and the actions taken;

      18       is that correct?

      19                 MR. WALLS:  Objection.

      20                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  What's the basis for the

      21       objection?

      22                 MR. WALLS:  Again, friendly cross.

      23                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  To the objection.

      24                 MR. DAVIS:  I'll withdraw the question.  The

      25       prefiled testimony speaks for itself.
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       1                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Very well.

       2       Any additional questions?

       3                 MR. DAVIS:  No.

       4                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Any other questions for

       5       the witness before we go to redirect?

       6                 Okay.  Mr. Rehwinkel.

       7                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Thank you.  Just a few.  Thank

       8       you, Mr. Chairman.

       9                         REDIRECT EXAMINATION

      10       BY MR. REHWINKEL:

      11            Q.   Dr. Jacobs --

      12                 MR. YOUNG:  Mr. Chairman, before we go to

      13       Mr. Rehwinkel, staff has no questions.

      14                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Yeah.  I asked

      15       staff before.  Okay.  So, I mean, when we go one way,

      16       it's real easy to follow.  In reverse order you got to

      17       kind of stop and think.  So, all right, but I thought

      18       that staff had said that previously, which is why I went

      19       to the Intervenor.  So I think we're on course.

      20                 Mr. Rehwinkel, you're recognized.

      21                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

      22       BY MR. REHWINKEL:

      23            Q.   Dr. Jacobs, does the silence in your testimony

      24       on the Levy nuclear plant historical costs mean that you

      25       are affirmatively agreeing with or making an affirmative

                              FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                       740

       1       finding about those costs?

       2            A.   No, it does not.

       3            Q.   Does your silence on the Levy nuclear plant

       4       projected costs mean that you're making an affirmative

       5       agreement with those costs or making an affirmative

       6       finding as to their appropriateness?

       7            A.   No.  I have not issued an opinion on those.

       8            Q.   Does your silence on management controls and

       9       oversight of the Levy nuclear plant mean that you are

      10       making, you are affirmatively agreeing or making an

      11       affirmative finding with respect to those oversight and

      12       control activities?

      13            A.   No, it does not.

      14            Q.   Does your silence on the CR3 historical costs

      15       mean that you are affirmatively agreeing with or making

      16       an affirmative finding with respect to those costs?

      17            A.   No, it does not.

      18            Q.   Does your silence on the CR3 projected costs

      19       mean that you're affirmatively agreeing with or making

      20       an affirmative finding on those costs?

      21            A.   No.

      22            Q.   And finally, does your silence on the

      23       management controls and oversight activities of Progress

      24       with respect to the CR3 plant mean you are affirmatively

      25       agreeing with or making an affirmative finding on those
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       1       activities?

       2            A.   No.

       3            Q.   Dr. Jacobs, you were asked the question about

       4       joint owners.

       5            A.   Yes.

       6            Q.   Are you aware of any other AP 1000 projects

       7       with joint owners?

       8            A.   Yes, I am.  The two other projects that have

       9       signed EPC contracts, one is the Vogtle Unit 3 and 4

      10       project being managed by Georgia Power Company has joint

      11       owners, and also the Summer Unit 2 and 3 project being

      12       managed by South Carolina Electric & Gas also has joint

      13       owners.

      14            Q.   Do you know the percentage of joint owners for

      15       the Vogtle plant?

      16            A.   Yes.  Vogtle, Georgia Power owns 45.7 percent,

      17       a little under 50 percent of that project, and then

      18       Oglethorpe Municipal Energy Authority, Electric

      19       Authority of Georgia in the city of Dalton own the rest.

      20       And I believe the Summer project is around a 50/50

      21       split.  I'm not precisely sure.

      22            Q.   Are you aware of the impact of joint ownership

      23       on the projected customer bills for the Vogtle plant?

      24            A.   Yes, sir.  For the, for the Vogtle project,

      25       when both units are in service, which is projected to be
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       1       in 2016 and 2017 for both units, it's anticipated that

       2       there would be about a $9 per month per 1,000 kilowatt

       3       impact on the average customer.

       4            Q.   Okay.  You were asked a question about -- I'll

       5       withdraw that.

       6                 Those are all the questions I have.  Thank

       7       you.

       8                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Very well.  Thank you.  At

       9       this point I guess we need to take up exhibits for

      10       Dr. Jacobs.  I believe that's Exhibit 31 through 33, if

      11       my memory serves me correctly.

      12                 MR. REHWINKEL:  We would move those.

      13                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Any

      14       objections?  Hearing none, show those Exhibits 31

      15       through 33 entered into the record.

      16                 (Exhibits 31 through 33 admitted into the

      17       record.)

      18                 MR. REHWINKEL:  And may Dr. Jacobs be excused

      19       from the hearing?

      20                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  He may.  Thank you.

      21                 MR. REHWINKEL:  He's -- I take that back.

      22                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  He's coming back for

      23       rebuttal.

      24                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Well, no.  May he be excused

      25       for the Progress portion of the hearing?
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       1                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Yes, you may be excused

       2       for the Progress portion of the hearing.  Thank you.  I

       3       knew there was something there.

       4                 MR. REHWINKEL:  I almost got you out.

       5                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  I believe that

       6       takes us now to the joint testimony of staff witnesses.

       7       So, staff, you're recognized to call your witnesses.

       8                 MR. YOUNG:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  At this

       9       time, staff would like to call William Coston and Kevin

      10       Carpenter to the stand.

      11                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  And Mr. Coston and

      12       Carpenter, have you been sworn, previously sworn?  All

      13       right.  Very well.  Thank you.

      14                 Mr. Young, you may proceed.

      15                 MR. YOUNG:  Mr. Chairman, may we approach?

      16                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  You may.

      17                 MR. YOUNG:  All right.  And just a point of

      18       information, Mr. Chairman.  What is being handed out by

      19       staff is the revised Exhibit CC-1, which is Number 77 on

      20       staff's, on the, excuse me, on the Comprehensive Exhibit

      21       List.  Also it's my understanding that Mr. Brew has

      22       given Ms. Bennett some documents to hand out for his

      23       cross-examination of staff's witnesses.  So --

      24                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  We'll take these up

      25       one at a time at the appropriate time.  Again, I believe
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       1       that staff's confidential document that they've handed

       2       out is marked for identification as Exhibit 77, and that

       3       is the review of Progress Energy Florida's progress --

       4       project management internal controls for nuclear plant

       5       uprate and construction projects.

       6                 MR. YOUNG:  Yes, sir.  And we will discuss

       7       that in terms of the revisions during the appropriate

       8       time.

       9                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Very well.

      10       And, Mr. Brew, and for the purpose of expediency, do we

      11       want to put a number on your two exhibits?

      12                 MR. BREW:  Yes.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I

      13       thought by way of getting things out of the way early,

      14       I've handed the witnesses two documents.  One is labeled

      15       Staff Response to PCS Interrogatories.  The other is

      16       labeled Staff Response to PCS Request for POD, and ask

      17       that they be marked for identification as Exhibits

      18       210 and 211.

      19                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Very well.

      20       The first exhibit will be marked for identification as

      21       Exhibit 210 and the second one as 211.

      22                 (Exhibits 210 and 2ll marked for

      23       identification.)

      24                 The first, Staff Response to PCS

      25       Interrogatories has been marked for identification as
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       1       Exhibit 210, and the Staff Response to PCS Request for

       2       POD is going to be marked for identification as Exhibit

       3       211.  All right.

       4                 And, Mr. Young, you may proceed.

       5                 MR. YOUNG:  Thank you, sir.

       6                  WILLIAM COSTON and KEVIN CARPENTER

       7       were called as witnesses on behalf of Florida Public

       8       Service Commission Staff and, having been duly sworn,

       9       testified as follows:

      10                          DIRECT EXAMINATION

      11       BY MR. YOUNG:

      12            Q.   Good afternoon.

      13            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Good afternoon.

      14            A.   (By Mr. Carpenter) Good afternoon.

      15            Q.   Have you been sworn?

      16            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Yes.

      17            A.   (By Mr. Carpenter) yes.

      18            Q.   Can both of you please state your name and

      19       business address for the record?

      20            A.   (By Mr. Coston) William Coston, 2540 Shumard

      21       Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399.

      22            A.   (By Mr. Carpenter) Kevin Carpenter, 2540

      23       Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399.

      24            Q.   By whom are you employed and in what capacity?

      25            A.   (By Mr. Coston) I'm employed by the Florida
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       1       Public Service Commission as a Government Analyst 2 in

       2       the Office of Auditing and Performance Analysis.

       3            Q.   Have you jointly prefiled testimony consisting

       4       of five pages in this case as it relates to Progress

       5       Energy Florida?

       6            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Yes, we have.

       7            A.   (By Mr. Carpenter) Yes.

       8            Q.   Do you have any changes or corrections to that

       9       testimony?

      10            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Staff notes that we have

      11       refiled an updated Exhibit CC-1 to incorporate Progress

      12       Energy Florida's revised confidentiality request and to

      13       reflect Order No. PSC-10-0534-PCO-EI.  In addition, in

      14       our refiled Exhibit CC-1 we corrected the exhibit page

      15       numbering in the top right-hand corner of each page and

      16       corrected the page numbering.  But I believe you asked

      17       me about my testimony, did you not?

      18            Q.   All right.  If I were to ask you the same

      19       questions in your joint prefiled testimony today, would

      20       your answers be the same?

      21            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Yes.

      22            A.   (By Mr. Carpenter) Yes.

      23                 MR. YOUNG:  Mr. Chairman, at this time we ask

      24       that the joint prefiled testimony of Mr. William Coston

      25       and Kevin Carpenter be entered into the record as though
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       1       read.

       2                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  The joint prefiled

       3       testimony of Mr. Coston and Carpenter will be entered

       4       into the record as though read.  You may proceed.

       5       BY MR. YOUNG:

       6            Q.   Did you have one exhibit attached to your

       7       testimony as relates to Progress Energy Florida, which

       8       is labeled Progress Energy, which is the project

       9       management internal controls relating to Progress Energy

      10       Florida nuclear plant uprate and construction projects?

      11            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Yes, we do.

      12            Q.   Do you have any changes or corrections to that

      13       exhibit other than the ones you've previously stated?

      14            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Not except for the ones I've

      15       previously stated.

      16                 MR. YOUNG:  Mr. Chairman, I ask that that

      17       Exhibit CC-1, which is the revised CC-1, is, and is

      18       marked as Number 77 on the Comprehensive Exhibit list be

      19       identified as such.

      20                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  Show it done.  And

      21       that's not yet entered.

      22                 MR. YOUNG:  No, sir.

      23                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Very well.

      24                 (Exhibit 77 marked for identification.)

      25
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       1       BY MR. YOUNG:

       2            Q.   Do you have a summary of your testimony?

       3            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Yes, we do.

       4            Q.   Can you please provide a summary of your

       5       testimony as it relates to Progress Energy Florida?

       6            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Yes.  Good afternoon,

       7       Commissioners.  Our testimony presents a management

       8       audit review of the project management internal controls

       9       that Progress Energy is using in managing the Crystal

      10       River nuclear unit uprate and the construction of its

      11       Levy nuclear project.

      12                 The primary objective of this review was to

      13       document and assess the key developments for both

      14       projects.  Our review included examining the

      15       organizational, management, internal controls and

      16       oversight that Progress Energy Florida has in place for

      17       these projects.

      18                 The internal controls examined were related to

      19       the following key areas of project activity:  Planning

      20       and project management oversight, management and

      21       organization, cost controls and schedule controls,

      22       contractor selection and management, and auditing and

      23       quality assurance.

      24                 For the Levy nuclear project, in 2009 the

      25       company evaluated the project's future and made the
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       1       decision to extend the schedule by at least 60 months

       2       from its original 2016 in-service date.  Currently the

       3       company's focus is to obtain the combined operating

       4       license from the Nuclear Regulatory Commission, which

       5       the company currently expects in late 2012 or early

       6       2013.  The company does not plan to complete any major

       7       construction on the Levy nuclear project until after

       8       receiving this approval.

       9                 In keeping with its decision to shift the

      10       construction schedule for the Levy nuclear project,

      11       Progress Energy Florida renegotiated its existing

      12       engineering procurement and construction contract with

      13       the consortium of Westinghouse and Shaw Stone & Webster.

      14       The amended contract now allows for this extended shift

      15       in schedule.

      16                 Additionally, the company anticipated an

      17       increase in the total project cost as a result of the

      18       schedule shift, and the company has identified these

      19       costs in the new estimates in its overall integrated

      20       project plan.  Audit staff determined that the

      21       management approach and internal controls used to

      22       evaluate and select the final decision for the Levy

      23       nuclear project were reasonable.

      24            A.   (By Mr. Carpenter) In 2009, the company also

      25       moved forward with the extended power uprate project for
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       1       its Crystal River 3 unit.  The project management team

       2       demonstrated that the work completed during 2009 was

       3       within the original schedule range and budget range

       4       approved by management.  Overall, the company estimates

       5       that the final project costs will be approximately

       6       12 percent over the original estimate.

       7                 During the 2009 refueling outage, while

       8       performing the steam generator replacement, the company

       9       identified a delamination in the unit's containment

      10       vessel wall.  While this event is not related to the

      11       extended power uprate project, the repair timeline will

      12       delay the company's future uprate schedule.  Audit staff

      13       recommends that the Commission monitor for potential

      14       impacts on the uprate schedule and cost estimates as a

      15       result of the delamination repairs.

      16                 Additionally, the company has experienced

      17       challenges with the low pressure turbines it plans to

      18       install as part of the uprate project.  Audit staff

      19       recommends the Commission continue to monitor the impact

      20       of the turbine manufacture and installation to ensure

      21       that no unnecessary additional costs are incurred as a

      22       result of the manufacturing issues, and that the plan

      23       versus, the plan versus achieved megawatt electricity

      24       output resulting from any changes is properly handled.

      25                 Finally, the company has not submitted its
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       1       license amendment request with the Nuclear Regulatory

       2       Commission to operate at the anticipated additional

       3       180 megawatts of electricity once the project is

       4       complete.  In 2009, the company determined after review

       5       by an expert panel that its original draft license

       6       amendment request application would not meet the Nuclear

       7       Regulatory Commission's expectation or approval.  The

       8       company spent the second half of 2009 and the first half

       9       of 2010 restructuring and strengthening its application.

      10                 Audit staff recommends that the Commission

      11       consider whether additional costs incurred as a result

      12       of these actions were a result of inadequate management

      13       oversight.

      14                 That concludes our summary.  Thank you.

      15                 MR. YOUNG:  Mr. Chairman, before we tender

      16       Mr. Coston and Mr. Carpenter for cross, I'd like to note

      17       on page 13 of staff's revised exhibit, we, we

      18       highlighted in yellow, it is confidential, so any

      19       questions, just a point of information to the parties,

      20       if any questions relating to that, please be careful on

      21       that.

      22                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Very well.  At

      23       this point staff has tendered the witness for

      24       cross-examination, and who's going first?  We're going

      25       to start with the Intervenors or I believe Progress.
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       1                 MR. WALLS:  No questions.

       2                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  Very well.  Any

       3       questions from the Intervenors?  Mr. Rehwinkel?

       4                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Yes.

       5                          CROSS EXAMINATION

       6       BY MR. REHWINKEL:

       7            Q.   Good afternoon.

       8            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Good afternoon.

       9            A.   (By Mr. Carpenter) Good afternoon.

      10            Q.   Charles Rehwinkel with the Public Counsel's

      11       Office.  I guess the way I'll ask questions, I'll lob

      12       the question out there, and whoever is the right one to

      13       answer it, answer it.

      14            A.   (Mr. Coston) Okay.

      15            Q.   In the testimony on page 4, on lines 1 through

      16       7, you state conclusions regarding the nuclear, the Levy

      17       nuclear project; is that correct?

      18            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Yes.

      19            Q.   Okay.  There's a statement in here on lines 6

      20       through 7 that says, "Given the uncertainties facing the

      21       company, keeping the project progressing without further

      22       substantial investment is a reasonable approach at this

      23       time -- "is a reasonable approach at this point in

      24       time."  Is that correct?

      25            A.   (By Mr. Coston) By Progress, yes.
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       1            Q.   Okay.  Now does your testimony make a judgment

       2       about whether Progress will ultimately take the

       3       appropriate steps to restart the project?

       4            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Our testimony speaks to the

       5       decision-making process the company went through to make

       6       the decision to extend its schedule.  And this, this

       7       statement reflects that.

       8            Q.   Okay.  So is it true then that your testimony

       9       makes no judgment about whether Progress will ultimately

      10       build the Levy nuclear plant?

      11            A.   (By Mr. Coston) No.  It does not make --

      12            Q.   Is it true that it makes no judgment?

      13            A.   (By Mr. Coston) It makes no judgment.  Excuse

      14       me.

      15            Q.   So the answer would be yes for the record.

      16            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Okay.

      17            Q.   When you made this statement -- let me strike

      18       that and say it this way.  Isn't it true that when you

      19       provided your testimony, you did not have the

      20       information contained in John Elnitsky's rebuttal

      21       testimony Exhibit JE-6?

      22            A.   (By Mr. Coston) We did not have that specific

      23       testimony on hand when we filed our testimony or made

      24       this assessment.

      25            Q.   Did you review Exhibit JE-6 to John Elnitsky's
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       1       rebuttal testimony?

       2            A.   (By Mr. Coston) We have reviewed that.

       3            Q.   Okay.  Do you have a copy of that with you?

       4       Do you have the confidential version?

       5            A.   (By Mr. Coston) We have a redacted version.

       6            Q.   Okay.  If I could hand --

       7                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Mr. Chairman, if I could

       8       approach the witness and hand them a copy of the

       9       confidential version.

      10       BY MR. REHWINKEL:

      11            Q.   This is JE, Exhibit JE-6 attached to the

      12       August 3rd, 2010, testimony of John Elnitsky.  And I'm

      13       going to ask you questions without asking --

      14                 MR. YOUNG:  Mr. Chairman?  I'm sorry.

      15                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Hold on, Mr. Rehwinkel.

      16                 Mr. Young.

      17                 MR. YOUNG:  Is it possible I can get the un,

      18       the, the confidential version of that testimony?

      19                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  The redacted version or

      20       the non-redacted?

      21                 MR. YOUNG:  The non-redacted version.

      22                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.

      23                 Mr. Rehwinkel, do you--

      24                 MR. YOUNG:  Because he's asking confidential.

      25                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Do you have a copy of the
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       1       confidential version?

       2                 MR. REHWINKEL:  I do not.  I mean, that was my

       3       copy.  Yeah.  I think -- yeah.

       4                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Is there

       5       another copy around or is there a way we can work

       6       through this?  Perhaps, you know, staff might be able to

       7       look over someone's shoulder.

       8                 MR. YOUNG:  Thank you.

       9                 MR. REHWINKEL:  I think Mr. Walls is

      10       accommodating.  I appreciate that.

      11                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  He's got them working well

      12       for you.

      13                 MR. REHWINKEL:  I think everybody has been

      14       very professional about litigating without taking it

      15       personally here.

      16                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Sharing the workload.

      17       It's all good.

      18       BY MR. REHWINKEL:

      19            Q.   My question to you is, and I don't want you to

      20       utter any of the numbers --

      21            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Certainly.

      22            Q.   -- in this in any answers that I, that I ask,

      23       ask for.  This testimony was filed on August 3rd, 2010.

      24       Your report was filed in July of 2010; is that correct?

      25            A.   (By Mr. Coston) That is correct.
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       1            Q.   Okay.  The number that is contained, that is

       2       summarized, that is the summary number in JE-6, is that

       3       a number that you considered when drafting your

       4       testimony?

       5            A.   (By Mr. Coston) You're making reference to the

       6       top number or the bottom chart?

       7            Q.   The number that is, and I believe I can say

       8       this, greater than 400 million.

       9            A.   (By Mr. Coston) That number was not -- I do

      10       not recall being provided during the course of our

      11       review.

      12            Q.   Were you aware of the magnitude of that number

      13       when you did your review?

      14            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Again, that number was not

      15       provided and I was not aware of that number.

      16            Q.   So you would not have been aware of that?

      17            A.   (By Mr. Coston) No.

      18            Q.   Okay.  Is that number greater than what you

      19       thought it would be at the time you wrote your

      20       testimony?

      21            A.   (By Mr. Coston) I have not had an opportunity

      22       to look at what the number is speaking to.  When we

      23       create, wrote our testimony in reference to the, the

      24       assertion that we make that we spoke to earlier on page

      25       4, that was looking at the decision-making process,
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       1       which looked at costs but looked at the greater totality

       2       of the internal controls in the project management

       3       approach.  So numbers were one aspect of what we looked

       4       at, including the chart listed above, but the bottom

       5       number we did not look at, we were not aware of.

       6            Q.   Okay.  And your, your opinion that is

       7       contained on lines 6 and 7 on page 4 is from a project

       8       decision-making standpoint and not necessarily based on

       9       a customer impact; is that correct?

      10            A.   (By Mr. Coston) That's correct.  We did not

      11       look at the customer impact.

      12            Q.   Okay.  Okay.  I can relieve you of the burden

      13       of that confidential information.

      14                 I want to turn now, I want to turn now to the

      15       CR3 project, and ask that you turn to page 45 of the, of

      16       the audit.  What do I call this exhibit?  This is the

      17       audit report.  Okay.  Now at this point in time there's

      18       no confidential information on page 45; is that correct?

      19            A.   (By Mr. Coston) That's correct.

      20            Q.   Okay.  In your review of the CR3 EPU project,

      21       did you look at the budget for the project, or cost

      22       estimate, I should say?

      23            A.   (By Mr. Coston) We did look at the cost

      24       estimate.

      25            Q.   Okay.  Now in your testimony, or in this, the
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       1       audit report, you state that the project, the initial

       2       project cost estimate was approximately $427 million; is

       3       that correct?

       4            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Yes.

       5            Q.   Okay.  And you say there was a base

       6       $250 million uprate work estimate.  What do you mean by

       7       base?

       8            A.   (By Mr. Coston) That number was the number

       9       provided by the company as the base for its technical

      10       work of the project.  At inception in the 2006 business

      11       analyst package, that's what they included in that

      12       package.

      13            Q.   Okay.  Now did you make any judgment about the

      14       $89 million for transmission upgrades as far as whether

      15       it -- let me strike that question.

      16                 There's a statement in here that there, there

      17       was $89 million for transmission upgrades; is that

      18       right?

      19            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Yes.

      20            Q.   Okay.  Did you make any judgment about whether

      21       that $89 million should be appropriate for the current

      22       budget to be measured against?

      23            A.   (By Mr. Coston) We did not.

      24            Q.   Okay.  Did you learn anything about whether,

      25       in your, in your audit work, about whether the -- well,
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       1       let me strike that question.

       2                 In reviewing the company documents, did you

       3       look at the July 2nd, 2009, audit of the CR3 EPU?

       4            A.   (By Mr. Coston) We did look at that audit.

       5            Q.   Okay.  Did you look at the audit work papers

       6       associated with that audit?

       7            A.   (By Mr. Coston) We looked at the management

       8       response to the audit.  I cannot recall if we looked

       9       specifically at the work papers themselves.  We spoke

      10       with the audit manager who conducted the audit and

      11       conducted the interview.

      12            Q.   Okay.  Now, as part of your, the opinion that

      13       you would render to the Commission in this audit report,

      14       this July 2010 audit report, would you be concerned with

      15       the company's adherence to the project budget from a

      16       cost standpoint?

      17            A.   (By Mr. Coston) I don't recall the specifics

      18       of that audit report.  If you have a copy, I'd be glad

      19       to look at it.

      20            Q.   Well, I guess my question was just generally

      21       with respect to the audit report that you performed,

      22       would, would adherence to the budget, for the overall

      23       project budget, is that something that you would look at

      24       with respect to developing your opinions in the audit

      25       report?
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       1            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Certainly.

       2            Q.   Did, did you see any evidence in the July 2nd

       3       audit report work papers that the Phase 2 portion of the

       4       EPU uprate was 50 percent over budget?

       5            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Certainly we looked at the

       6       budget aspects of that and looked at the budget in the

       7       totality of the original budget that was provided to the

       8       IPP, in the IPP for the project and the company's

       9       approach to that.  And the management audits, or the

      10       audits that we reviewed, we spoke with management on

      11       their response to those audits in addressing the

      12       concerns that the audit managers had in relation to

      13       those audits.

      14            Q.   Okay.  If, if the, there was not a specific

      15       finding in the company's internal audit by the ASD, the

      16       Audit Services Division, would you not then be of any,

      17       have any concern if -- if there was not a specific

      18       finding in the ASD work product, you would not look

      19       behind that?

      20            A.   (By Mr. Coston) We requested and received the

      21       audits that were completed by the company, the

      22       management response to those audits, and spoke with the

      23       audit managers for those audits, and certainly looked at

      24       those and discussed the, the findings and the company's

      25       approach to resolving those findings.  So, and we
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       1       certainly, any time there would be a, an issue or an

       2       improvement, requirement or something to that effect,

       3       certainly talked through how the company has addressed

       4       those.

       5            Q.   Okay.  So if there was not a finding in the

       6       July 2nd, 2009, report about the Phase 2 portion of the

       7       CR3 uprate being 50 percent over budget, then that would

       8       not have been something that you would have been aware

       9       of; is that correct?

      10            A.   (By Mr. Coston) I would have to really look at

      11       the July audit and kind of refresh my memory on what the

      12       audit said to determine how we approached.

      13                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Okay.  Mr. Chairman, I would

      14       like to inquire of staff witnesses using an exhibit that

      15       was admitted with Mr. Franke's testimony.  I just need

      16       to get a hand on it.

      17                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  We'll hold in

      18       place for a moment.

      19                 And, staff, since the exhibit has been moved

      20       into evidence already, I'm sure that staff would have no

      21       objection to the use of the exhibit.

      22                 MR. YOUNG:  Not at this time.

      23                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.

      24                 MR. REHWINKEL:  This is Exhibit 199 for

      25       everybody.
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       1                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Very well.

       2                 MR. REHWINKEL:  And I would like to hand

       3       Mr. Brew's copy of this exhibit to the witness and

       4       reference page, Bates stamp page 10 NC OPC

       5       POD2-45-000488, and ask the witnesses to review that

       6       document.

       7                 MR. YOUNG:  And, Mr. Chairman, just for point

       8       of clarification.

       9                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Mr. Young.

      10                 MR. YOUNG:  This is -- or point of inquiry.

      11       This is a confidential document; correct?

      12                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Yes, it is.

      13                 MR. YOUNG:  And you're talking about the page,

      14       if I'm following correctly, that begins with the word

      15       "final."  Or am I mistaken on the page?

      16                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Yes.  Which is, which is a

      17       line that is not highlighted in yellow.

      18                 MR. YOUNG:  Okay.

      19                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Before the witness answers

      20       the questions, let's make sure that the information

      21       we're not disseminating is in fact not confidential.

      22                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Yes.

      23                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Everyone in agreement on

      24       that?

      25                 MR. YOUNG:  Can you repeat?  I'm sorry, sir,
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       1       can you repeat --

       2                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  I just want to make

       3       sure -- and I appreciate you taking the time to ask

       4       Mr. Rehwinkel.  I just want to make sure that the

       5       information contained in his proposed question is not

       6       going to be confidential.  So we'll check and balance

       7       here.  But as long the parties agree it's not a problem,

       8       you may proceed.

       9                 But, Mr. Walls, do you have something to add?

      10                 MR. WALLS:  Yeah.  Mr. Young is correct.  That

      11       line is not highlighted.

      12                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Better to be

      13       safe than sorry.

      14                 MR. YOUNG:  Yes.

      15                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you.  You may

      16       proceed.

      17       BY MR. REHWINKEL:

      18            Q.   The first page, if you can keep your finger on

      19       that page, the first page of this document says, "Audit

      20       services department CR3 EPU and SGR projects July 2,

      21       2009."  Do you see that?

      22            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Yes.

      23            Q.   Okay.  Is -- so going back to Bates stamp page

      24       488, is this information that's on this first line in

      25       that first sentence, is that information you were aware
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       1       of when you prepared your audit report?

       2            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Yes.  We did review this

       3       document with the company.

       4            Q.   Okay.  So were you aware of budget costs for

       5       Phase 2 being 50 percent over in the financial view

       6       compared to project estimates?

       7            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Yes.  We did go through the

       8       findings that were outlined in this audit as well as the

       9       improvements that the company or the audit staff

      10       identified and management's response to how they were

      11       managing and tracking the costs.

      12            Q.   So does the fact that you offer no opinion

      13       about that mean there was not a concern to you about the

      14       project being 50 percent over budget, Phase 2 portion of

      15       it?

      16            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Well, in relation to the

      17       audit, we looked at the audit and were satisfied that

      18       the, that the items that were identified by the

      19       company's Audit Services Department were adequately

      20       addressed by management.

      21            Q.   Okay.  If the company -- so from the

      22       standpoint of the customers and the costs that the

      23       company is seeking to recover, does your audit report

      24       say that it's okay for them to be over budget, or are

      25       you not offering an opinion about that aspect of their
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       1       project?

       2                 MR. YOUNG:  Objection.  Asked and answered.

       3       Just to be, to expound on the objection, I think the

       4       witness has answered that question, that they did not,

       5       did not express an opinion as it relates to the

       6       50 percent over the financial, 50 percent over the

       7       financial view compared to the project estimates.

       8                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Mr. Rehwinkel, to the

       9       objection.

      10                 MR. REHWINKEL:  I really don't think that

      11       part of my -- I didn't think I asked that question yet.

      12       I mean, that's what I want to know.  I don't feel like

      13       there's an answer to that.  I mean, my question isn't

      14       critical.  I'm just trying to understand the nature of

      15       the opinion that is being offered in the audit report.

      16                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  I'm going to

      17       overrule the objection.  You may proceed.

      18                 THE WITNESS:  (By Mr. Coston) Could I have you

      19       repeat the question?

      20                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Okay.  Let me see if I can --

      21       can the court reporter read my question back?

      22                 (Foregoing question read by the court

      23       reporter.)

      24                 THE WITNESS:  (By Mr. Coston) Thank you.

      25       We're not offering an opinion on the overage or underage
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       1       of the budget.  What we are offering, our review looks

       2       at, is how the company monitors and evaluates through

       3       its internal control process its costs.  And including

       4       in that is the audit review that the internal, that the

       5       company does through its audit process.

       6       BY MR. REHWINKEL:

       7            Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  That's, that's helpful to

       8       me.  Thank you.

       9                 With respect to the issue regarding the AREVA

      10       rewrite, did you ask the company to provide

      11       documentation that showed that the, they had planned to

      12       have the expert panel participate in the review of the

      13       draft LAR?

      14            A.   (By Mr. Coston) We did talk through that with

      15       the company.

      16            Q.   Did they show you any documents before the

      17       expert panel review that showed that the expert panel

      18       was something that was always planned?

      19            A.   (By Mr. Coston) We were not able to identify

      20       that in our work papers, any of the work papers provided

      21       by the company.

      22            A.   (By Mr. Carpenter) I would add that the

      23       presentation that was given to the Nuclear Regulatory

      24       Commission on April 1st of 2009, I recall that it is,

      25       that the expert panel was addressed in one of those
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       1       slides.  And I can get that in front of me, if you need

       2       me to.

       3            Q.   April 1, 2009?

       4            A.   (By Mr. Carpenter) Yes.  The title of this

       5       presentation was Crystal River Unit 3 Extended Power

       6       Uprate, April 1st, 2009.  This was a presentation from

       7       Progress Energy to the NRC, the Nuclear Regulatory

       8       Commission.

       9                 And the pages are not numbered, but the title

      10       of this particular slide is EPU Submittal Approach.  At

      11       the bottom of that is a sentence that states -- and I

      12       don't believe any of this, since I got it off the

      13       website, would be confidential.  But it states that,

      14       "Establishing independent expert panel for supplemental

      15       review."  That was the first notice that I saw in the

      16       documentation that we looked at.

      17            Q.   Okay.  So that says establishing as if it is

      18       currently going on; correct?

      19            A.   (By Mr. Carpenter) It's stating establishing

      20       independent expert panel.  So at that point in time I

      21       think they were starting to think about having the

      22       expert panel review the LAR.  At least that's what I

      23       would take from it.

      24            Q.   Okay.  But there's no documentation that you

      25       were provided that shows that this had always been
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       1       planned as part of the LAR preparation?

       2            A.   (By Mr. Carpenter) It was stated to us

       3       verbally, but nothing in documentation.

       4            Q.   Okay.  What reliance did you place on the IPP

       5       with respect to cost, to cost, effective cost control?

       6            A.   (By Mr. Coston) IPP for both projects or a

       7       particular project?

       8            Q.   For the CR3.

       9            A.   (By Mr. Coston) CR3.  The IPP, we used that as

      10       the document that the company uses to receive approval

      11       for the expenditures of the project, and in that

      12       document we look at the risk and the feasibility aspects

      13       they include in that and present to their senior

      14       management for approval.

      15            Q.   Did you consider the IPP to be a controlling

      16       document with respect to their, the company's

      17       performance against the budget with respect to the

      18       execution of the project?

      19            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Certainly the IPP is the

      20       document, the request to the senior management for

      21       funding, so the company does use that and the project

      22       team uses that for the request for additional funding if

      23       there is a budget variance.

      24            Q.   Did you understand the IPP to be the official

      25       budget for the project until changed by a subsequent
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       1       IPP?

       2            A.   (By Mr. Coston) It is my understanding the IPP

       3       is not necessarily a budget but an authorization, if you

       4       will, of funding.

       5                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Those are all the questions I

       6       have.  Thank you.

       7                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you, Mr. Rehwinkel.

       8                 Mr. Brew, any cross-examination?

       9                 MR. BREW:  Thanks, Mr. Chairman.

      10                          CROSS EXAMINATION

      11       BY MR. BREW:

      12            Q.   Good afternoon, gentlemen.  My name is James

      13       Brew, representing PCS Phosphate.

      14            A.   (By Mr. Carpenter) Good afternoon.

      15            Q.   I'm a little confused about which one is

      16       Coston and which one is Carpenter.

      17            A.   (By Mr. Carpenter) Coston, Carpenter.

      18            Q.   Thank you.

      19                 Do you have before you the exhibits I gave you

      20       earlier, which are marked for identification as Exhibits

      21       210 and 211?

      22            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Yes.

      23            A.   (By Mr. Carpenter) Yes.

      24            Q.   And do you recognize those documents as staff

      25       responses to the discovery that PCS did of staff?
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       1            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Yes.

       2            Q.   And were you responsible for or involved in

       3       the preparation of those responses?

       4            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Yes, I was.

       5            A.   (By Mr. Carpenter) Yes.

       6            Q.   And can you state whether or not those

       7       responses are accurate?

       8            A.   (By Mr. Coston) If you'll give me a moment, I

       9       can.

      10            Q.   Sure.

      11            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Yes.

      12            Q.   Yes?  Thank you.

      13                 I'm going to refer you back to the statement

      14       you have on page 4 of your prefiled testimony that

      15       Mr. Rehwinkel discussed with you regarding the question

      16       and answer on the top of page 4 that says, "Please

      17       summarize your conclusions regarding the Levy nuclear

      18       plant project."  And the statement at line 6 and 7 that,

      19       "given the uncertainties facing the company, keeping the

      20       project progressing without further substantial

      21       investment is a reasonable approach at this time," do

      22       you see that?

      23            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Yes.

      24            Q.   And I've got to admit I was very perplexed by

      25       this testimony, and I think we're going to be here for a
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       1       while, but I think I understood you to change your

       2       testimony in your summary, and I want to make sure that

       3       I understood it right.  I heard you to say that your

       4       conclusion was that Progress's management controls for

       5       making the Levy decision was reasonable.  Is that a fair

       6       statement of your testimony?

       7            A.   (By Mr. Coston) I have it in front of me.

       8       Could I have you repeat?

       9            Q.   What I heard you was that you said that you

      10       concluded that Progress's management controls for the

      11       Levy decision were reasonable.  Is that right?

      12            A.   (By Mr. Coston) I can read back what I, what

      13       I --

      14            Q.   Please do.

      15            A.   (By Mr. Coston) I said audit staff determined

      16       that the management approach and internal controls used

      17       to evaluate and select the final decision of the Levy

      18       nuclear project were reasonable.

      19            Q.   Okay.  But what your testimony says is that

      20       you have concluded that the company's decision, given

      21       the uncertainties that it faced, to progress without

      22       further substantial investment is a reasonable approach

      23       at this time.  So what I want to understand is, did you

      24       reach an independent decision that Progress's decision

      25       regarding the revised schedule and the go-slow approach
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       1       for Levy is reasonable?  Is that your opinion, or are

       2       you saying that your review of the company's process,

       3       their management controls is reasonable, because those

       4       are two very different things?

       5            A.   (By Mr. Coston) The scope of our audit review

       6       was to examine the project management internal controls

       7       of Progress Energy and its relationship in constructing

       8       this plant, new plant, and that is what we did in our,

       9       within our scope.  And that is what our statement here

      10       reflects, in that within the scope of our review and the

      11       scope that is included within our executive summary, the

      12       approach that was taken by the company were within a

      13       reasonable, with internal controls -- excuse me.  Let me

      14       restate that.

      15                 The approach taken by the company and the

      16       controls that were in place to reach the decision and

      17       the decision-making process were reasonable.  We're not

      18       speaking on the decision itself.

      19            Q.   Very good.  So to the extent that I asked you

      20       questions about the three options that the company

      21       considered --

      22            A.   Uh-huh.

      23            Q.   -- whether they were reasonable, you would say

      24       you have no opinion about the decision regarding any of

      25       those options, but that the process for the company to
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       1       consider them you thought was reasonable.

       2            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Right.  That they were in the

       3       totality of the decision-making process, yes.

       4            A.   (By Mr. Carpenter) That is correct.

       5            Q.   Okay.  And to the extent the company in its

       6       rebuttal referred to this statement as a statement that

       7       staff considered their actions to be reasonable, that

       8       would not be an accurate statement of your actual

       9       findings; is that right?

      10            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Right.  We're speaking on

      11       behalf of the decision-making process --

      12            Q.   Process, not the decisions itself.

      13                 So when I ask -- I'm sorry.

      14                 THE COURT REPORTER:  You were talking over

      15       each other.  Would you repeat your answer, please?

      16                 THE WITNESS:  (By Mr. Coston) Yes.  We

      17       reviewed in relationship to the decision-making process,

      18       in relationship to the internal controls in place by the

      19       company.

      20       BY MR. BREW:

      21            Q.   So if I were to ask you the questions of,

      22       regarding what would be the appropriate criteria to

      23       consider to make an informed decision on that, you again

      24       would say that you don't have an opinion on that, again

      25       only that the company's process for evaluating the
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       1       criteria it selected was reasonable.

       2            A.   (By Mr. Coston) I would say we had a, we

       3       looked at the process, and in relationship to that

       4       process there are certain criteria that the company

       5       looked at and assumptions they made.  And that, we

       6       looked at those in the totality of the decision-making

       7       process.

       8            Q.   Good.  But to the extent I asked you did you

       9       use any assumptions of your own or do any of your own

      10       evaluation of the decision, the answer would be no,

      11       that's not what we did?

      12            A.   (By Mr. Coston) No.

      13                 Excuse me.

      14            Q.   Do you mean yes?

      15            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Yes.

      16            Q.   Okay.  And so, bottom line, the question of

      17       prudence, was their decision reasonable, is not

      18       something in your testimony?

      19            A.   (By Mr. Coston) No.

      20            Q.   Okay.  The same, the beginning of that

      21       sentence, "Given the uncertainties facing the company,"

      22       again, did you evaluate those uncertainties as to their

      23       likely impact on the project, or was your review -- went

      24       to -- did your review go to the company's process for

      25       evaluating those uncertainties?
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       1            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Our review went to the process

       2       for evaluating and identifying those uncertainties.

       3            Q.   Okay.  But whether those uncertainties had

       4       gotten bigger, smaller, changed was not an evaluation

       5       that you performed.

       6            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Correct.

       7            Q.   Okay.  And, again, to the extent the company

       8       made a decision that revised the costs and schedule for

       9       the project, you did not evaluate the reasonableness of

      10       the proposed cost and schedule; is that correct?

      11            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Correct.  The decision process

      12       to revise those costs.

      13            Q.   Nor did you evaluate the likely ramifications

      14       of that in terms of impacts on rates or customer

      15       impacts; is that right?

      16            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Correct.

      17            Q.   Okay.  You're making progress.

      18                 To the extent there were other ramifications

      19       of the decision to slip the schedule by 60 months,

      20       including its impact on potential joint ownership in the

      21       project, answers would be the same, you did not evaluate

      22       those likely ramifications or the reasonableness?  You

      23       simply, again, looked at to the extent to which they

      24       were part of the company's process for making its

      25       decision; is that right?
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       1            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Correct.  We did look at joint

       2       ownership and what the company is doing in that area,

       3       but not, you know, in relationship to the decision.

       4            Q.   You looked at it in relationship to its

       5       process and controls or the reasonableness of its

       6       actions?

       7            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Process, the process and

       8       controls and if it did impact a decision-making -- if it

       9       was included in the decision-making process.

      10            Q.   Got you.  Not whether they decided that

      11       process reasonably.

      12            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Correct.

      13            Q.   Okay.  In the context of the options that the

      14       company considered, in particular the potential for

      15       project cancellation, again, my questions are going to

      16       be the same.  Did you look at whether they, they

      17       considered -- whether the decision not to cancel the

      18       project was reasonable or whether or not their process

      19       for evaluating that option was reasonable?

      20            A.   (By Mr. Coston) The evaluation of the option.

      21                 MR. BREW:  Okay.  Thank you.  That's all I

      22       have.

      23                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you, Mr. Brew.

      24                 Ms. Kaufman?

      25                 MS. KAUFMAN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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       1                          CROSS EXAMINATION

       2       BY MS. KAUFMAN:

       3            Q.   Mr. Coston; right?

       4            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Yes.

       5            Q.   Okay.  Thank you very much for that

       6       clarification with Mr. Brew.  That cut out a lot of my

       7       questions.  And that statement caused some consternation

       8       on this side of the table, so, so thank you for that.

       9                 I wanted to have you turn to page 15 of the

      10       audit report.  Let me know when you're there.

      11            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Okay.  We're there.

      12            Q.   Toward the middle of the page you talk about

      13       the operational readiness organization.  Do you see

      14       that?

      15            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Yes.

      16            Q.   And in the next paragraph you talk about the

      17       importance of that readiness group.  But the very last

      18       sentence in that paragraph says, "However, audit staff

      19       has concerns about the timing and resources placed on

      20       this group during 2009, given the schedule flux and the

      21       company's consideration to cancel the project."

      22                 Can you explain what concerns you had about

      23       the timing and resources related to the operational

      24       readiness group?

      25            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Yes.  The concerns that are

                              FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                       783

       1       referenced in that sentence would be the, again, the

       2       timing of the implementation of the operational

       3       readiness group within the organization for the Levy

       4       project in relation to the evaluation of project

       5       schedules that was being considered by the company.

       6            Q.   Well, is it your view that dollars were

       7       expended on that activity that were perhaps unnecessary

       8       given the, how did you put it, the schedule flux?

       9            A.   (By Mr. Coston) The company did expend

      10       resources on that, within that group in the time frame.

      11       The -- as we state in our report, there is value in that

      12       organization.  We're not nuclear engineers to under --

      13       or recognize the need for training in that, or the time

      14       it takes to train for that position.  But given the

      15       shift and, that the company was considering and those

      16       resources and the implementation of that resources at a

      17       senior management level provided some concern to us

      18       during the review.

      19            Q.   In the course of your work, did you, did you

      20       quantify or calculate a dollar amount that was related

      21       to the concerns that you referenced there?

      22            A.   We did not, no.

      23                 MS. KAUFMAN:  Thank you, Mr. Coston.  That's

      24       all I have.  Coston.

      25                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Mr. Jacobs.
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       1                 MR. JACOBS:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

       2                          CROSS EXAMINATION

       3       BY MR. JACOBS:

       4            Q.   Good afternoon, gentlemen.

       5            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Good afternoon.

       6            A.   (By Mr. Carpenter) Good afternoon.

       7            Q.   My name is Leon Jacobs.  I'm here representing

       8       the Southern Alliance for Clean Energy.  I think my

       9       questions can be rather brief as well.  You've answered

      10       several of them already.

      11                 First of all, let's step back for a moment.

      12       You've described this, what we see as Exhibit 77, as a

      13       management review; right?

      14            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Correct.

      15            Q.   Is there, is there a nuance or a technical

      16       distinction between a management review and an audit?

      17            A.   (By Mr. Coston) This review and the scope of

      18       our review was done using the standards established by

      19       the Institute for Internal Auditing, and I think it

      20       would be comparable to, similar to a management review

      21       or an internal audit type review.

      22            Q.   Okay.  So you use the standards of an audit,

      23       but you actually weren't in the context of traditional

      24       Commission audits where you'd go in and perform an

      25       official audit; this is not that.  Is that, is that a
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       1       correct statement?

       2            A.   (By Mr. Coston) I would say that our audits

       3       were not financial audits.

       4            Q.   Okay.

       5            A.   (By Mr. Coston) In that respect they're not

       6       financial-based audits.  They're more internal audits,

       7       style audits.

       8            Q.   The, the, the text of your report in several

       9       places presents statements that, that would make

      10       conclusions about various issues that you had, you had

      11       done a review of.  And let's go to page 15 since we're

      12       there.

      13            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Okay.

      14            Q.   And we're at the top of the page.  The very

      15       last sentence in that -- now I'd caution you there are

      16       some, there is some confidential information here, but

      17       I'm not, I'm not addressing that.  I'm looking

      18       specifically at the very last sentence of the first

      19       page.  I'm on the page, the first paragraph on page 15.

      20                 That sentence reads, "If the company remains

      21       committed to completing the project, the cost

      22       differential is necessary."

      23                 Could you walk me through what that statement

      24       is, is, is meaning to communicate?

      25            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Sure.  Just give me a moment

                              FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                       786

       1       to refresh with respect to it.

       2            Q.   Sure.  Sure.

       3            A.   (By Mr. Coston) There are, excuse me, there

       4       are two numbers, confidential numbers in that paragraph.

       5       The statement, the last sentence that you just read

       6       reflects those numbers represent moving forward or

       7       canceling the project.  Just simply stating that,

       8       because of the differential in those numbers, if the

       9       company is choosing to move the project forward on an

      10       ongoing basis, then the differential between those two

      11       numbers would be necessary because the project is

      12       continuing.

      13            Q.   Consistent with your prior testimony and line

      14       of questioning from Mr. Rehwinkel and from Mr. Brew,

      15       you're basically accepting the analysis done by the

      16       company and you're looking at the process --

      17            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Correct.

      18            Q.   -- more so than looking at a qualitative

      19       evaluation.

      20            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Correct.  We did not analyze

      21       the specifics of those two numbers.

      22            Q.   Okay.  And if, if we go over to page 58,

      23       again, at the top of the page, and again the very last

      24       sentence in the first paragraph.  And that sentence

      25       reads, "Given the uncertainties facing the company,
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       1       audit staff recognizes that keeping the project

       2       progressing without further substantial investment of

       3       cost is a reasonable approach by PEF at this point in

       4       time."

       5                 Your assessment of reasonableness, is that

       6       consistent with our prior discussion that you've had

       7       along the lines that it's pretty much based on a review

       8       of your decision-making process?

       9            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Yes.  Our definition of

      10       reasonableness in this situation was looking at the

      11       approach taken by the company as it relates to the

      12       standards established with the Institute of Internal

      13       Auditors and summarized in our executive summary on page

      14       2 of our report where we talk about the control

      15       environment, and that's where we assess the

      16       reasonableness, the appropriateness in relation to those

      17       controls on a project management internal controls area.

      18            Q.   Okay.  As -- you undertook this exercise as

      19       employees of the Commission; is that correct?

      20            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Correct.

      21            Q.   And you're aware that as, as the witnesses

      22       testifying here, that basically your role is pretty much

      23       as a, as a technical expert and putting evidence into

      24       the record, contrasted with technical staff that would

      25       in fact advise the Commission during the deliberative
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       1       process; you understand that distinction?

       2            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Certainly.  Yes.

       3            Q.   Okay.  So that same distinction would go to

       4       any statements that are in your conclusions here, would

       5       that not?  In other words, if you can't go into the

       6       deliberative process and elucidate or expand on these

       7       statements for purposes of advising for a final

       8       decision, then those statements that you make here you

       9       would think have that same limitation, wouldn't they?

      10            A.   (By Mr. Coston) I'm sorry.  I --

      11                 MR. YOUNG:  Objection.  I'm a little confused

      12       as to what Mr. Jacobs is asking.  I think if he is on

      13       the lines of the statement, the witnesses' statements

      14       being as a regular, as any other ordinary witness in the

      15       Commission giving statements of the witnesses the weight

      16       it's due, I'm fine with that.  If he's on something

      17       other than that, then I'd like some clarification on

      18       what he's asking the witnesses.

      19                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  Mr. Jacobs, I think

      20       to facilitate the objection, and hopefully we can avoid

      21       the objection, if you could please restate your question

      22       or try and address the concerns, and then I'll leave it

      23       free to staff to either take up the objection or allow

      24       the question.

      25                 MR. JACOBS:  Absolutely.  I think it might be
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       1       helpful, and I'm sorry, I don't have copies, but --

       2                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Or if you could just

       3       restate the question maybe a little bit with a little

       4       bit more specificity to --

       5                 MR. JACOBS:  By all means.

       6       BY MR. JACOBS:

       7            Q.   In fact, let me read from, from one of the

       8       Commission's guiding rules, and exactly it's where I'm

       9       going.  In Rule 25-22.033(5), the very last sentence of

      10       that rule reads, "However, a staff member who testifies

      11       in a case shall not discuss the merits of that case with

      12       any Commissioner during the pendency of that case."

      13            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Correct.

      14            Q.   Okay.  And my question simply is that these

      15       statements here carry that same limitation, wouldn't

      16       they not?

      17            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Yes.

      18            Q.   Okay.  And so they, just as your counsel just

      19       stated, I would agree with that, that they sit in the

      20       record simply for the weight of evidence in contrast

      21       with all the other evidence in the record; correct?

      22            A.   (By Mr. Coston) Correct.

      23                 MR. JACOBS:  Okay.  Thank you.  No further

      24       questions.

      25                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you, Mr. Jacobs.
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       1                 Any questions from the bench?

       2                 I do have one to the witness.  You were asked

       3       previously -- and feel free, either one, to answer,

       4       Mr. Coston or Mr. Carpenter.  You were asked previously

       5       about the staff audit report in relation to the prudency

       6       of Progress's management actions and related to the, if

       7       my memory serves me correctly, low pressure turbine.  Is

       8       there anything that members of internal audit staff in

       9       preparing that report, given the confidential

      10       information that has been redacted, is there anything

      11       that would lead internal audit staff to conclude that

      12       Progress was anything but imprudent with respect to the

      13       action taken and the business acumen applied in

      14       resolving that issue?

      15                 THE WITNESS:  (By Mr. Coston) Just for

      16       clarity, which, excuse me, which audit report?

      17                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  The -- hold on real quick.

      18       It's the confidential exhibit that's been passed out.

      19                 THE WITNESS:  (By Mr. Coston) Okay.

      20                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  And let me, let me get to

      21       the page.  And to be helpful, what I was talking about,

      22       and I probably should have gotten the document out to

      23       begin with because there's the Levy 1 and 2 and the EPU,

      24       and my question relates to the EPU on page 41,

      25       continuing on to page 42 and then page 43.
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       1                 But is there anything -- again, that issue

       2       came up in a cross-examination question.  And the

       3       question, as I remember it, and, again, that was some

       4       questions ago, dealt with the prudency of Progress's

       5       action and staff's recommendation related to that

       6       specific issue.  And was there anything in the staff

       7       audit report, again, noting that some of the information

       8       is redacted, to show that Progress was anything less

       9       than prudent on addressing that issue, not only to

      10       preserve the uprate potential but also to protect the

      11       interests of their customers?

      12                 THE WITNESS:  (By Mr. Coston) Yes.  We did

      13       point out a few unresolved issues at that time, at the

      14       time of our audit report, which was in the spring to

      15       early summer, in relationship to the low pressure

      16       turbine and the negotiations that the company had

      17       ongoing at that time to resolve some of the vendor

      18       issues that had arisen.

      19                 One -- on page 43 specifically, the -- there's

      20       a number in paragraph, in the fifth paragraph, the

      21       last --

      22                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  I understand.  And I'm not

      23       concerned, I'm not concerned with that number because,

      24       again, that number seems to be outside the scope of the

      25       business acumen involved in addressing the issue with
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       1       the turbine manufacturer.

       2                 So, again, in terms of preserving its option,

       3       and the issue presented starting on page 41 and, you

       4       know, continuing on to page 43, was there anything that

       5       internal audit staff found to indicate that Progress was

       6       not prudent in taking the actions it took?

       7                 THE WITNESS:  (By Mr. Coston) No.  Our review

       8       showed that the company up to that point had done -- had

       9       proper internal controls in place to monitor that.

      10                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  So their

      11       actions were prudent in relation to addressing that

      12       issue?

      13                 THE WITNESS:  (By Mr. Coston) (Nods head.)

      14                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Thank you.

      15                 THE WITNESS:  (By Mr. Carpenter) I would

      16       add that --

      17                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Wait.  I didn't get a yes

      18       or no.  I got a head nod.

      19                 THE WITNESS:  (By Mr. Coston) Oh, sorry.

      20       Excuse me.  Yes.

      21                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Thank you.

      22                 THE WITNESS:  (By Mr. Carpenter) I would add

      23       that the quality assurance that was in place with

      24       Progress Energy prevented them from taking acceptance of

      25       a defective component.
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       1                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  I understand.  I don't

       2       want to get too far into contractual issues.  But,

       3       again, there was a situation that developed, management

       4       action, and the question that came up was questioning

       5       the prudency of the management action in relation to

       6       resolving that issue.  And I think that I just wanted to

       7       clarify staff's position in relation to that.  Thank

       8       you.

       9                 All right.  Any additional questions from the

      10       bench?

      11                 All right.  Staff for redirect.

      12                 MR. YOUNG:  No redirect.  And we move Exhibit

      13       Number 77.

      14                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Very well.  Any objections

      15       to entering Exhibit 77 into the record?  All right.

      16       Hearing none, show Exhibit 77 --

      17                 MR. YOUNG:  And --

      18                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Hold on.  Let me, let me

      19       say what I need to say and then we'll move along.

      20       Exhibit 77 will be entered into the record.

      21                 And, Mr. Young, you're recognized.

      22                 (Exhibit 77 admitted into the record.)

      23                 MR. YOUNG:  Mr. Chairman, I just want to point

      24       out, to ensure that there were no objections, it was the

      25       revised Exhibit Number 77 that, that we passed out.
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       1                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  I understand.  Right.  And

       2       I believe that at the time you mentioned that in that

       3       clarification, so that's just to cross the Is and dot

       4       the Ts.  Are there any objections to entering the

       5       revised Exhibit 77 into the record?

       6                 MR. WALLS:  No.

       7                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  Very well.  Show it

       8       done.

       9                 And then I believe, Mr. Brew, you have Exhibit

      10       210 and 211?

      11                 MR. BREW:  Yes.  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  PCS would

      12       move both of those into evidence.

      13                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  Any objection to

      14       entering what's been marked for identification as

      15       Exhibit 210 and 211 into the record at this time?

      16                 MR. WALLS:  No objection.

      17                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Since there's

      18       no objection, show it done.

      19                 (Exhibits 210 and 211 admitted into the

      20       record.)

      21                 And I believe, Mr. Coston and Carpenter, you

      22       may step down.

      23                 MR. YOUNG:  At this time, Mr. Chairman, can

      24       they be excused?

      25                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Do they need to reappear
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       1       in the FPL portion of the docket?

       2                 MR. YOUNG:  No, sir.  It's another set of

       3       witnesses.

       4                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Very well.

       5                 You may be excused.  Thank you.

       6                 All right.  I think that takes us now to PF,

       7       excuse me, Progress Energy rebuttal.  And the first

       8       witness is I believe Mr. Franke again.  So, Mr. Walls,

       9       you're free to call your witness.

      10                 MR. WALLS:  We'd call Jon Franke to the stand,

      11       and he has already been sworn.

      12                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Thank you.

      13                 At this transition period, I think this is a

      14       good time for a break to allow our court reporters to

      15       switch out.  And what we'll do is we'll take a brief

      16       ten-minute break I believe should be sufficient and

      17       allow the parties an opportunity to stretch and get

      18       prepared for the next witness.  So we're on recess until

      19       five after the hour.  Thank you.

      20                 (Recess taken.)

      21                 (Transcript continues in sequence in Volume

      22       4.)

      23

      24

      25
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